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SOLID.    STEADY.    STRONG.
BUILDING WITH VISION.



For more than 80 years, one organization has been there for the working men and 
women who have been the foundation of our economy through good times and bad. 
Over that time, the Labor movement has given unionized workers a way to collectively 
achieve a better future for their families. ULLICO shares that passion for collective 
achievement and strives to develop financial and risk solutions that fit the needs of 
Labor leaders, unions, members, and their employers.

Like the unions we serve, ULLICO applies a solid work ethic to the insurance and  
financial services business in order to provide the best possible coverage, consistently 
solid returns and extraordinary service. Our experienced leadership team combines 
extensive product expertise with deep knowledge and understanding of Labor and its 
challenges.  No other company shares such a long-standing relationship with Labor or 
an unwavering commitment to this marketplace.  

RENEWING OUR VISION
A SOLID LABOR WORK ETHIC
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2008 was an extraordinary year! The world experi-
enced stock market declines of a magnitude not seen 
since The Great Depression. Governments established 
unprecedented stimulus packages, rescued failing fi-
nancial institutions, and in some cases, even national-
ized banking. One after another, legendary companies 
across the investment, insurance and banking sectors 
were bought out, bailed out or simply ceased to exist. 
Virtually every major financial institution in the country 
suffered major operating losses and significant de-
clines in their capital. 

In sharp contrast to the many fallen industry giants dur-
ing these volatile times, we are extremely proud to report 
ULLICO remains financially sound, secure, and profit-
able. We weathered the storms of the past year in good 
stead and ended 2008 with a strong capital base, no 
debt and a clean investment portfolio.  More importantly, 
we enter 2009 with accelerating momentum as all core 
businesses again produced profitable growth. These 
positive results are a testament to the vision, planning, 
and discipline of the Board of Directors and manage-
ment team and our commitment to delivering the most 
effective financial and risk solutions to the Labor market.  

STRENGTH AND BALANCE 
ULLICO’s solid performance is attributable to its dis-
tinctive strengths. At the core of these strengths is the 
unique access and trust ULLICO has with our market as 
the only multi-line financial services company owned 
by Labor.  With that strategic advantage in mind, the 
Board has worked diligently to assemble a manage-
ment team with an unmatched combination of finan-
cial services and Labor expertise. This team has in turn 
worked hard in recent years to create a foundation of 
financial strength; implement conservative underwrit-
ing and risk management philosophies; and establish 
a culture of best-practice corporate governance, com-
pliance and transparency. The combination of these 
traits has enabled us to build a broad and competitive 

product portfolio tailored to the specific needs of Labor 
while also steadily improving operating returns and 
embedded shareholder value.

The diversification of our products, our financial dis-
cipline, and our unwavering focus on Labor’s financial 
needs provides ULLICO a balance and resiliency that 
allowed us to avoid most of the recent challenges of the 
financial services market. It also positions us to take 
advantage of opportunities that will inevitably emerge 
during this difficult economic environment.  ULLICO 
understands innovation is the foundation of economic 
growth and always endeavors to develop new products 
and programs to meet the needs of Labor, its funds, its 
members, and its employers.

CONSISTENT OPERATING RESULTS
In 2008, ULLICO again experienced strong revenue 
growth in all core business lines.  This growth contin-
ues to be achieved through expanding existing markets 
for core products, an increased emphasis on Labor-fo-
cused risk solutions (including producer or participant 
captives), and new product introductions. This has off-
set most of the decline in total revenue resulting from 
the run-off of the fully insured health business which 
has not been actively marketed since 2006.  Operating 
profit remains strong driven by consistent underwriting 
and pricing discipline, and lower operating expenses 
while our adjusted operating profit margin continues to 
improve reflecting the change in our mix of business.  
Key outcomes to date include: 

 › Revenue in core lines of business grew 13% over 2007 
– a second consecutive year of double digit growth.

 › Total operating profit grew to $13.4 million while 
adjusted operating margin improved to 4.7% from 
3.3% in 2007.

 › Property & Casualty gross written premium grew to 
$79 million, up more than 77% from 2007.

         MESSAGE   
TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CLIENTS, AND FRIENDS
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 › Life & Health premium in force topped $140 mil-
lion in 2008.

 › Separate Account J (J for Jobs) delivered a strong 
5.31% return for the full year – one of the few positive 
returns for pension investments in the market – while 
also funding $1.2 billion and nearly 32 million hours 
of union labor on new construction projects.

HIGH QUALITY BALANCE SHEET
Equally important to the positive operational results 
are the sustained strength and quality of ULLICO’s 
balance sheet. The financial and economic melt-
down during 2008 resulted in most financial institu-
tions incurring significant mark-to-market losses on 
their investment portfolios – in a number of cases as 
high as a 30% to 40% reduction in capital. However,  
ULLICO’s investment perspective in recent years was 
that there was not enough additional return poten-
tial for the increased risk in many asset classes 
and our strategy was to move most of the portfolio 
into government-backed and high quality corporate 
fixed income instruments while consciously avoid-
ing subprime mortgage exposure, other derivatives, 
and equity investments. As a result, ULLICO enjoyed 
a mark-to-market gain on its investment portfolio of 
$7.4 million. 

In addition, we maintained a consistent and conser-
vative approach to reserving for claims in our insur-
ance lines and continue to report low levels of intan-
gible assets resulting in very low leverage ratios for 
our consolidated equity. Statutory capital levels in our 
insurance company subsidiaries remain very high with 
risk-adjusted capital ratios far exceeding required 
regulatory levels. In summary, the balance sheets of 
the corporation and its primary subsidiaries have never 
been stronger. Our insurance subsidiaries are well-po-
sitioned for future financial-strength rating upgrades. 

BUILD WITH VISION
In 2008, we accelerated the second phase of our strate-
gic plan; “build with vision.”  To build with vision means 
to develop an organization unequivocally positioned to 
serve Labor better than any other financial services 
company. This requires building relationships based on 
trust, responsiveness, and a willingness to understand 
the unique needs of our market. It demands a flexible 

and creative portfolio of products and services – real 
financial solutions – supported by the most effective 
organizational structure, systems, and workflow.

Most importantly, for ULLICO, to build with vision 
means the Labor customer is at the heart of all that 
we do. Customer relationships – a union, a fund or 
trustee, a member, or a union employer - will always 
be our most highly prized asset and we are committed 
to focusing on the needs of our customers and serving 
them to the highest degree possible. To that end, we 
continue to invest in improvements to service, prod-
uct features, performance, and delivery of our existing 
portfolio. In addition, we also fund significant research 
on new business opportunities and evolving economic 
trends that will impact Labor and its employers. Our 
goal is to stay ahead of these trends and provide Labor 
with proactive financial solutions for today’s rapidly 
changing world. 

Among the more notable investments made during 
2008 were:

 › The implementation of the “One Market, One Cus-
tomer, One ULLICO” initiative, an integrated mar-
keting and customer relationship program to bet-
ter align and coordinate sales and service across 
all business units.

 › The successful launch of ULLICO’s Captive and Al-
ternative Risk Business including the formation of 
ULLICO Captive Insurance Company, a segregated 
cell facility domiciled in Washington DC.

 › Significant enhancements to our group life and 
medical stop-loss products and marketing sup-
port to jump start new growth.
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 › The successful pilot program and re-entry of  
ULLICO Casualty Company to the small and mid-
size contractor surety market.

 › The creation of a new investment fund that will co-
invest with Separate Account J, which can accept 
deposits from any institutional source (including 
health and welfare funds, general funds, chari-
ties, etc.). 

In addition to these accomplishments, our investment 
in building the best team continues. This includes the 
appointment of long-time Board member and Audit 
Committee Chairman, Edward J. McElroy, as Interim 
CEO, to replace Mark Singleton, who is leaving the 
company after six years of service.  Other profession-
als with impressive expertise who were recruited and 
promoted, at all levels of the organization, include:

 › Gary Burke – President, The Union Labor Life  
Insurance Company

 › Peter Jones – President, ULLICO Investment Advisors

 › Larry Paradise – Vice President, Life & Health

 › Chris Tosney – Vice President, Life & Health

 › Denise Olivares – Vice President, Life & Health

 › John O’Brien – Vice President, Property & Casualty

 › Sarah Gustafson – Vice President, Property & Casualty

 › Edward Titus – Vice President, Property & Casualty

 › Daniel Cunningham – Vice President, Real Estate

 › Donita Johnson – Vice President, Real Estate

 › William Cavanagh – Vice President,  
Market Development

 › William Thornton – Vice President, Corporate Marketing

 › Patrick McGlone – Vice President,  
Deputy General Counsel

By maintaining our values and our vision, we will 
continue to be Labor’s trusted partner.  We currently 
have direct relationships with more than 80% of the 
Labor market through our client base, our sharehold-
ers, and our board membership.  With our comprehen-
sive financial service offerings, there is tremendous 
opportunity to leverage our existing relationships to 
cross-sell solutions and expand our base. Listening 
and learning, prodding and innovating, we are build-
ing an even stronger company and a better tomorrow 
for our labor.  In these times of economic uncertainty, 
ULLICO remains dedicated to providing innovative 
products for union while exceeding the expectations 
of our shareholders

We are grateful for the continued loyalty and support of 
all of our stakeholders.  We sincerely look forward to a 
future of building an even greater ULLICO and serving 
the Labor community in visionary ways.

Joseph J. Hunt
Chairman

Edward M. Smith
President

*Performance disclosures are an integral part of this report and are included. Past performance is not indicative of future results. The investment return and principal value of an investment 
will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. Current performance may be lower or higher than the performance data quoted. 
Investments in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the potential inability of an investor to redeem units.

† For full disclosure, see page 31.

The testimontials included in this Annual Report are not indicative of future success.



L A B O R ’ S  O W N  F I N A N C I A L  A N D  R I S K  S O L U T I O N S  P R O V I D E R  | 5

                                          FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CONTINUING TO GROW RESPONSIBLY

“For ULLICO, to build with vision means the Labor customer is at 
the heart of all that we do. Customer relationships – a union, a fund 
or trustee, a member, or a union employer – will always be our most 
highly prized asset and we are committed to focusing on the needs 
of our customers and serving them to the highest degree possible. 

In the most difficult of economic climates, ULLICO has continued to 
grow and succeed; our relationship with our customers, too, has  

remained solid, steady and strong.  Highlighted throughout this 
year’s annual report, are quotes from some of our customers.  We 

are grateful and proud to have their support.”Joseph Hunt
Chairman, ULLICO Inc.
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Revenue by Line of Business

NOTE: Revenue= Premium & Fee Income

Direct Marketing & Individual 
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Advisors & Other Investments

4%

J for Jobs / Real Estate
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20%

Specialty Health 
8%

Group Health 
7%
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Business Units —Continuing Lines

Life and Health $162  $147  $124  $133  $137 

Property and Casualty $33  $26  $27  $34  $54 

Retirement Services $33  $33  $33  $37  $40 

Core Revenue $228  $206  $184  $204  $231 

Discontinued Business Segments $212  $145  $104  $68  $22 

Total Revenue $440  $351  $288  $272  $253

STRONG 2008 FINANCIAL RESULTS

 › Revenue in core lines of business grew 13% over 2007 – a second consecutive year of double 
digit growth.

 › Total operating profit grew to $13.4 million while adjusted operating margin improved to 4.7% 
from 3.3% in 2007.

 › Property & Casualty gross written premium grew to $79 million, up more than 77% from 2007.

 › Life & Health premium in force topped $140 million in 2008.

 › Separate Account J (J for Jobs) delivered a strong 5.31% return for the full year – one of the 
few positive returns for pension investments in the market – while also funding $1.2 billion and 
nearly 32 million hours of union labor on new construction projects.

2008 CONSOLIDATED REVENUE
Total Revenue: $253 Million
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SERVING OUR CUSTOMERS AND 
CREATING VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS

 › More than $27 billion in Life and AD&D  insurance in force covering over 1½ million union members and 
dependents

 › More than $100 million of Property & Casualty premium in force covering funds serving over 6 million 
active members

 › More than $5 billion in Assets Under Management invested by pension funds representing almost 2.5 
million active union members and millions of retirees

 › Consolidated GAAP Equity of more than $240 million with significant share ownership by unions and 
their pension plans representing over 80% of the Labor movement

Profit
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Adjusted Operating Margin n/a 1.5% 2.6% 3.3% 4.7%

 Net Income $0.1M $35.8M $16.8M ($2.4M) $6.1M
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

GAAP Equity $249.5M $232.3M $249.2M  $258.5M $240.6M

Book Value Per Share $19.07 $25.37 $27.23 $28.24 $26.28 

Union Labor Life RBC% 431% 746% 859% 825% 715%

ULLICO Casualty RBC% 562% 765% 802% 606% 676%

(RBC = Risk Based Capital)
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Conservative finanCial management

 ›   no subprime or alt-a mortgage exposure

 ›   no derivatives

 ›   no credit default swaps

 ›   no junk bonds

 ›   minimal equity exposure

 ›   Disciplined cash management

 ›   no debt in capital structure
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“We continue to invest our corporate assets primarily in safe, 
liquid U.S. Government and Agency securities, while at the same 
time taking advantage of emerging opportunities in the market-

place.  Our conservative investment management practices have 
enabled ULLICO to substantially avoid the problems paralyzing 

much of the industry at this time.”David J. Barra, CFO

Corporate Invested Assets Bond Portfolio Quality

Short Term
Investments 10%

Mortgages 4%

Limited Partnerships 3%

Equity Securities less than 1%

Bonds 83%

Less than
BBB less than 0.5%

BBB 2%
A 12%
AA 4%
AAA 4%

US Gov’t
& Agency 
Securities 78%

Bonds  

constitute over 80% 

of ULLICO’s  

corporate  

invested  

assets

High quality bond 

portfolio: Over 

three quarters in 

U.S. government-

backed securities
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“We’ve been with ULLICO since the 1980’s and I can’t say 
enough great things about the Company.  The professionalism, 

responsiveness, courtesy and integrity of the staff are incompa-
rable; the products are exceptional; and the prices are competi-

tive.  ULLICO has reorganized itself and turned into one of the 
most outstanding companies in the world!”Richard Ward
Intl. Assoc. of Bridge, Structural, Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers

Iron Workers District Council of Tennessee Valley & Vicinity
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     SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS 
SOLID PERFORMANCE TO BUILD ON

 › Property and Casualty

 › Life and Health

 › Retirement Services

 › Real Estate Investment Group 
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“We are so thrilled to be a long standing ULLICO customer.  The 
Company is hands above all the competitors in its  

professionalism, ethics and fair and steady rates.  We know we can 
always count on the ULLICO team to deliver customized, 

well-thought, and educated solutions to meet our needs.”Tim McCarthy
Iron Workers Local Union 17
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PROPERTY & CASUALTY
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ULLICO Casualty Company is the risk solutions provider for Labor and multiemployer 
benefit plans.  We have three goals to meet this special mission.  First, we strive for 
profitability in everything we do, as we seek to earn an “Excellent” financial strength 
rating.  We are on the doorstep of our goal, as we received a “Positive Outlook” from 
A.M. Best in 2008, setting the stage for future upgrades.  Second, we value our service 
to Labor.  We are not a generic insurance company seeking solely to maximize share-
holder value.  To the contrary, we offer creative risk solutions to help the Labor move-
ment grow and prosper.  Third, we strive for operational excellence as we continue to 
grow a company of enduring value.  In 2008, we experienced tremendous growth as 
we introduced expanded commercial insurance products and new surety credit offer-
ings.  As ULLICO Casualty Company approaches the $100 million threshold in premium 
in 2009, ULLICO now has a thriving casualty insurance company which can serve the 
special needs of our market.

FIDUCIARY & UNION LIABILITY
ULLICO Casualty continues to be the trusted, leading 
provider of fiduciary liability insurance for multiple 
employer benefit funds and union liability insurance 
for labor unions.  We have built our sizable profession-
al liability insurance market share based on our exper-
tise in serving the union market, our responsiveness, 
and flexibility in creating solutions for our policyhold-
ers.  We understand that the union market has special 
needs, and we take great pride in being thought lead-

2008 KEY FINANCIAL RESULTS
 › Gross Written Premium: $79.0 Million (up 77% over 2007)

 › Completed fourth straight year of profitability with $8.9 million in pre-tax profit in 2008

In 2008, ULLICO Casualty achieved a fourth straight year of profitability with $8.9 million in operating 
profit and a pre-tax return on premium of 16%.  Property and casualty premium in force increased more 
than 80% during the year—a clear indication of the market’s response to our value proposition of  
providing risk solutions and outstanding service to Labor.

ers in designing customized insurance coverage that 
meets the specific needs of our market.  For example, 
we were the first to offer expanded fiduciary liability 
coverages for new liabilities under the Pension Pro-
tection Act, and union liability coverages for reporting 
liabilities under the Labor-Management Reporting Act.  
Our focus on our specialized market is what differen-
tiates ULLICO Casualty from the commercial carriers 
who target a larger market.
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COMMERCIAL LINES
ULLICO Casualty continued to roll out its commercial 
line products in 2008, which include commercial pack-
age, commercial auto, property and general liability 
policies.  Our goal is to tailor coverages with our Union 
Advantage Endorsement to protect unions in critical 
areas that commercial carriers often miss.  We con-
tinue to serve as a leading workers’ compensation 
provider for union halls across the country.  In 2008, 
we expanded our workers’ compensation programs for 
niche contractors and other employers.  

SURETY
ULLICO Casualty introduced surety bonds to attempt to 
fill a void for small union contractors across the country.  
More and more projects require surety credit, but few 
insurance companies focus on small contractors.  With 
our new surety program, ULLICO can give a small con-
tractor the ability to win a profitable project, and create 
more quality union jobs.  Surety is another example of 
how ULLICO Casualty is meeting its special mission to 
help the union movement grow and prosper.

ALTERNATIVE RISK SOLUTIONS
For some of our policyholders, the most efficient in-
surance solution is often retaining risk themselves.   
ULLICO Casualty has invested heavily in its alternative 

“At ULLICO Casualty Company, our goal is to create risk solutions to help the Labor movement 
grow and prosper.  We measure our success every time we provide a risk solution that makes a 

union or unionized employer more competitive or productive.  Our goal in the next several years 
is to continue to develop a casualty insurance company that builds the unionized workforce with 

quality jobs – jobs with prevailing wages and good benefits.” 

Daniel Aronowitz, President, ULLICO Casualty Company

risk transfer programs so we can help our policyholders 
achieve the right risk solution.  Many of our policyhold-
ers are considering group captives offered by ULLICO 
Casualty, which allow small policyholders the oppor-
tunity to achieve the potential risk reward previously 
enjoyed only by large multi-national companies.  Our 
workers’ compensation captives, for example, attempt 
to solve the anomaly in which unionized contractors 
typically pay more for workers’ compensation insur-
ance despite employing better trained and experienced 
unionized workers. 

“WE’VE GOT YOUR BLINDSIDE”
Our successful, “We’ve Got Your Blindside,” marketing 
campaign symbolizes our unique mission to protect our 
affinity Labor market.  Just as a “wingman” protects 
the lead pilot in a potentially dangerous flying envi-
ronment, we want to protect the leaders of the Labor 
movement so they can take the necessary risks to ad-
vance the rights of working men and women.  We push 
ourselves to understand the challenges of the Labor 
market, and then create insurance products that solve 
Labor’s problems.  As a result, we take great pride in 
knowing we are achieving our special mission of grow-
ing the Labor movement. 
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“ULLICO provides quotes and pricing that is always fair.  The 
value is terrific because you get extraordinary service.  When-
ever we’ve had a problem, ULLICO is able to get it resolved in a 

prompt, responsive and professional manner.”Ellen Romano
Bakery Drivers Local Union 194
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LIFE AND HEALTH
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The Union Labor Life Insurance Company is the flagship subsidiary of ULLICO.  The 
Company’s Life & Health business unit provides valuable insurance products and of-
fers innovative risk solutions to unions, jointly managed trust funds, organized em-
ployers, and government entities.  Our products include several types of Group insur-
ance coverage – Life, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, and Disability.  We offer 
Medical Stop Loss Insurance and are looking to expand our Specialty Health cover-
ages. We also offer supplemental voluntary insurance programs directly marketed 
to union members, retirees and their families.  And we have added to our markets 
a new channel, Individual Agency business, through which Union Labor Life will sell 
individual life and supplemental health insurance products.

GROUP LIFE, MEDICAL STOP LOSS & SPECIALTY HEALTH
In 2008, Union Labor Life introduced redesigned Group 
AD&D benefits and updated its medical stop loss policy 
to better meet the needs of the Labor market.  We began 
to explore several creative group solutions for the Taft-
Hartley market, including Supplemental Health, Hear-
ing, and Vision plans, as well as innovative pharmacy 

2008 FINANCIAL KEY RESULTS 
› Gross Revenue: $159.2 Million

› Operating Profit: $8.5 Million

Life & Health premium in force topped $140 million in 2008.  Our pre-tax operating profit of $8.5 million 
reflects a modest increase over the prior year.  Revenue in Life & Health’s continuing lines grew  3.3% in 
2008, driven by strong sales and persistency of Medical Stop Loss business.

solutions that are just coming to the marketplace.  We 
exceeded our Stop Loss sales goal by 18%, with $16.7 
million in annualized new premium.  We also success-
fully negotiated improved terms with our Stop Loss 
fronting carrier, resulting in a potential savings of $1.5 
million per year.
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INDIVIDUAL LIFE 
Always in search of better ways to serve our custom-
ers, Union Labor Life, in 2008, developed an Individual 
Life Insurance initiative utilizing an enhanced agent 
distribution model.  This model allows us to enter our 
market with individual life insurance agents, in a way 
that encompasses customer service leadership and 
sensitive financial needs-based analysis and assess-
ment.  We designed a comprehensive portfolio of Term 
Life, Whole Life and Final Expense products with union-
friendly riders specifically for this program.  Our goal is 
to extend our reach to underserved sectors of working 
America and provide much needed financial and insur-
ance products to this community.  

DIRECT MARKETING
Extending its reach to a broader constituency within 
the union sector is an important goal for the Life & 
Health unit.  Direct marketing is an effective method 
to engage with customers in a busy marketplace and, 
in 2008, we made great strides in this area.  In fact, 
our direct marketing efforts increased our penetra-
tion to newly insured Teamsters and retirees by 21% 
over 2007.  In addition, Union Labor Life reaffirmed 
its commitment to serve AFL-CIO and Change to Win 
unions. We successfully secured endorsement by  

“In 2008, the Life & Health business unit expanded its market outreach efforts.  Our strong affinity 
with and deep understanding of the Labor market are the foundation on which we’ll build out new 

products and services to increase our market reach.”

Gary L. Burke, President, The Union Labor Life Insurance Company

LIUNA (Laborers’ International Union of North Ameri-
ca) to offer our products and services to its members. 

Our product development efforts have included the 
creation of a life insurance solution which offers a 
variety of term duration options, including 15, 20 and 
25 years.  We have also improved accessibility and 
convenience for our customers by integrating an e-
commerce platform for our products.  In fact, we now 
offer online enrollment of Accidental Death & Dismem-
berment insurance.  

MOVING FORWARD
During 2009 and beyond, Union Labor Life will continue 
the momentum from 2008 by expanding our portfolio 
of products and by increasing our ability to market 
to union members and their families through an as-
sortment of distribution channels.  Union Labor Life 
remains committed to listening to its customers and 
meeting their needs through regular communications 
with client advisors, skilled brokers and consultants. 
Our planned initiatives are always designed with the 
union customer in mind and ultimately enhance and 
strengthen our capacity to serve Labor.
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“I love presenting ULLICO because the company has tailored 
the right products for unions—they’ve mastered it!  ULLICO 

doesn’t look for the easy way out.  The company is always look-
ing out or the customer and stands behind its word.  Why wouldn’t 

you do business with ULLICO—you’re buying a good product at a 
reasonable price and you’re supporting unions.”Coco Arango

Broker
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RETIREMENT SERVICES
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Established in 2007, the Retirement Services business unit was organized to expand 
ULLICO’s presence in the Labor market as an asset manager, primarily for Taft-Hart-
ley plans, and to address the full scope of retirement services needs of the Labor 
movement.  Retirement Services is an outgrowth of the former Investment Services 
unit in recognition of the growing retiree segment.  Experienced with the range of 
unique and emerging needs of union members in, near or planning for retirement, 
ULLICO is firmly positioned to serve as the financial services solutions provider for 
Labor and multi-employer benefit plans.  Our products and innovative financial solu-
tions alternatives are specifically designed for Labor related funds seeking competi-
tive returns at reasonable cost while directing proxy voting and other decisions in a 
responsible, Labor-sensitive manner.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
› Gross Revenue: $40.0 Million

› Operating Profit: $21.9 Million

Despite market conditions in 2008, Retirement Services pre-tax operating profit exceeded $20 million.  
Third party assets under management summed to $4.7 billion at the end of 2008.  ULLICO Investment 
Advisors reported assets under management of $887 million.  Additionally, our flagship Separate Account J 
surpassed 200 accounts.
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Retirement Services’ diverse group of investment prod-
ucts are offered through The Union Labor Life Insur-
ance Company and ULLICO Investment Advisors and 
sold through the ULLICO Investment Company (mem-
ber FINRA/SIPC).  The menu of product choices is broad 
and encompasses bonds; domestic and international 
stocks, in core; value and growth styles; as well as 
Union Labor Life’s signature real estate related prod-
uct, J for Jobs.

2008 ACHIEVEMENTS
Retirement Services represents the largest potential 
growth area of the Company.  In managing our busi-
ness, we seek to implement best practices in all areas 
of operations: product development, sales, service and 
communications support.  Significant attention has 
been directed to our client service and sales manage-
ment activities.  In alignment with corporate philoso-
phy, Retirement Services takes great pride in offering 

“In 2008, we continued to retool the portfolio of products offered through ULLICO’s financial 
services subsidiaries to offer solutions that are either unique to the Labor market or traditional 
products with a Labor focus and sensitivity.  Our competitive performance during a tumultuous 

year for the financial markets solidified our value as an asset manager for Labor.”

Peter M. Jones, President, Retirement Services

exemplary customer service and continually looks for 
creative and responsive ways to enhance satisfaction.  

KEY INITIATIVES LAUNCHED
 › Launched Separate Account W for non-pension fund 

investors as a parallel fund to our Separate Account J

 › Raised $70 million for our newly created, privately 
offered real estate fund and purchased three 
properties

 › Began product development efforts for an infra-
structure fund, index fund, private equity fund, 
and the retooling of mid-cap to smid-cap products

2009 RETIREMENT SERVICES OBJECTIVES
In 2009, we will build upon our recent initiatives and 
continue to implement best practices for optimal op-
eration of the business unit.  Superior product develop-
ment, client service, expanded distribution, and mem-
ber solutions are the major focus for the coming year.
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“ULLICO has deep experience with labor and understands it.  
That makes a huge difference.  The company speaks the language 
of labor and dances the dance of unions and its people are always 
reliable, flexible and timely.  That goes a long way in cementing a 

relationship.”Pete Wilson
Consultant
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REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT GROUP
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The Real Estate Investment Group (REIG) is responsible for the origination, underwrit-
ing and administration of real estate mortgage and equity investments within ULLICO, 
including Separate Account J, Separate Account U, privately offered funds, as well as 
the General Account real estate portfolio of The Union Labor Life Insurance Company.  
By requiring 100% union construction, REIG assists in the creation of union jobs while 
also providing superior risk adjusted returns for pension plans.
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SOLID PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  
AND EXTENSIVE EXPERTISE
J for Jobs maintains its position as a premier provider of 
capital dedicated to new construction and permanent 
loan financing for all types of commercial real estate 
throughout the U.S.  With construction loan fundings in 
excess of $1 billion on an annual basis, the program is 
a key source of funding for union jobs at a time when 
construction projects continue to be constrained by the 
overall economy as well as a general lack of availabil-
ity of financing.  We continue to diligently execute a 
disciplined loan process featuring first and foremost 
an adherence to conservative underwriting standards; 
extensive quantitative and qualitative research; and 
proactive risk management and compliance processes.

AN INCREASED CAPACITY TO SERVE LABOR
REIG is investing significant resources in ensuring that 
the quality of the real estate portfolio, its strong overall 

record of performance, and customer service are sus-
tained.  With more than thirty-two years of lending his-
tory in all major markets and all property types, REIG 
will continue to provide deeper, more focused product 
expertise, allowing us to be well-positioned to capital-
ize on excellent lending opportunities as the economy 
turns around.

KEY BUSINESS RESULTS
The Real Estate Investment Group handled more than 
$1.3 billion in loan commitments in 2008.  The over-
all market value of our real estate holdings increased 
to more than $3.6 billion in Separate Account J, the 
flagship investment vehicle managed by Union Labor 
Life, since the fund’s inception in 1977 and $3.8 bil-
lion, overall.  In addition to delivering positive earnings 
for the year, our programs generated nearly 32 million 
union working hours, demonstrating a tremendous 
value to the Labor movement.

“The year 2008 will long be remembered as the beginning of an economic dislocation that this 
country has not seen since the Great Depression.  In spite of that, ULLICO enjoyed a successful 

year by continuing its focus on sound real estate assets, and a long-term view to providing 
consistent returns to its investors.”

Herbert A. Kolben
Senior Vice President, Real Estate Investment Group, The Union Labor Life Insurance Company
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Joseph J. Hunt 
Chairman, ULLICO Inc. 
General President, International Association of Bridge,  
Structural, Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers

Mark H. Ayers 
Secretary-Treasurer, ULLICO Inc. 
President, Building and Construction Trades Department, AFL-CIO

Stuart M. Bloch 
Chairman of the Board of Directors,  
Congressional Bank (UBC Representative)

John J. Flynn 
President, International Union of Bricklayers and Allied Craftworkers

James A. Grogan 
General President, International Association of Heat & Frost 
Insulators & Asbestos Workers

Joseph T. Hansen 
International President, United Food and  
Commercial Workers International Union

William P. Hite 
General President, United Association of Journeymen and  
Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipe Fitting Industry  
of the U.S. and Canada

Lindell K. Lee 
International Secretary-Treasurer, International Brotherhood  
of Electrical Workers

Edward J. McElroy 
President Emeritus, American Federation of Teachers

Terence M. O’Sullivan 
General President, Laborers’ International Union of North America

Kinsey M. Robinson 
International President, United Union of Roofers, Waterproofers 
and Allied Workers

Vincent R. Sombrotto 
President Emeritus, National Association of Letter Carriers

Edward C. Sullivan 
President Emeritus, Building and Construction Trades  
Department, AFL-CIO

Michael J. Sullivan 
General President, Sheet Metal Workers’ International Association

George Tedeschi 
President, Graphic Communications Conference of the  
International Brotherhood of Teamsters

Richard L. Trumka 
Secretary-Treasurer, AFL-CIO

James A. Williams 
General President, International Union of Painters and  
Allied Trades, AFL-CIO, CLC

ULLICO INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
As of April 30, 2009
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CORPORATE OFFICERS OF ULLICO INC. AND ITS MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 

As of April 30, 2009

ULLICO INC.

Edward J. McElroy 
Interim Chief Executive Officer

Edward M. Smith 
President

Mark H. Ayers 
Secretary-Treasurer

Jeremiah J. O’Connor 
Executive Vice President, Market Development

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice President, Chief Finance Officer 

Gary L. Burke 
Senior Vice President

Peter M. Jones 
Senior Vice President

James M. Paul 
Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer

Teresa E. Valentine 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer &  
Assistant Secretary

Jeffrey S. Bryan 
Vice President, Human Resources

William K. Cavanagh 
Vice President, Market Development

Adam M. Fried 
Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management

Damon Gasque 
Vice President, Controller & Assistant Treasurer 

Joseph R. Linehan 
Vice President, Investments

Patrick McGlone 
Vice President, Deputy General Counsel

William C. Thornton, Jr. 
Vice President, Marketing

James T. Tierney 
Vice President, Chief Information Officer

John F. Hoffen, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President, Tax Compliance

Arthur R. Ludwig 
Assistant Vice President, Market Development

James A. Noel, III 
Assistant Vice President, Assistant Controller

Kenneth J. O’Brien 
Assistant Vice President, Financial Planning and Analysis

Vechel D. Radford 
Assistant Vice President, Market Development

Jason P. Wilder 
Assistant Vice President, Asset Management

THE UNION LABOR LIFE 
INSURANCE COMPANY

Edward J. McElroy 
Interim Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Gary L. Burke 
President

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice President, Chief Finance Officer

Herbert A. Kolben 
Senior Vice President, Real Estate Investment Group

James M. Paul 
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Teresa E. Valentine 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer &  
Assistant Secretary

Jeffrey S. Bryan 
Vice President, Human Resources

Daniel Cunningham 
Vice President, Real Estate Investment Group

Adam M. Fried 
Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management

Damon Gasque 
Vice President, Treasurer & Controller

Cathy A. Humphrey 
Vice President, Investment Operations

Donita M. Johnson  
Vice President, Portfolio Administration

Joseph R. Linehan 
Vice President, Asset Management

Denise D.B. Olivares 
Vice President, Marketing

Larry J. Paradise 
Vice President, Sales

Christopher J. Tosney 
Vice President, Operations

Daniel L. Wolak 
Vice President, Chief Actuary

Jack L. Baumer 
Assistant Vice President, Actuary Individual Products

Louis F. Hejl, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President, Human Resources

John F. Hoffen, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President, Tax Compliance

Kevin M. Justh 
Assistant Vice President, Equity Real Estate

Charles H. MacPhaul 
Assistant Vice President, Compliance Life and Health
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Thomas E. Miller 
Assistant Vice President, Underwriting

Victor J. Moran, III 
2nd Vice President, Actuarial Operations & Illustration Actuary,  
Group Insurance & Appointed Actuary

ULLICO INVESTMENT ADVISORS, INC.

Peter M. Jones 
President

Adam M. Fried 
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary & Treasurer

Cathy A. Humphrey 
Vice President, Investment Operations and Chief Compliance Officer

Herbert A. Kolben 
Vice President, Portfolio Manager

Joseph R. Linehan 
Vice President, Portfolio Manager

ULLICO INVESTMENT COMPANY, INC.

Joseph R. Linehan 
President

Adam M. Fried 
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary & Treasurer

Cathy A. Humphrey 
Senior Vice President, Chief Compliance Officer

ULLICO CASUALTY COMPANY

Edward J. McElroy 
Interim Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Daniel Aronowitz 
President

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

James M. Paul 
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Teresa E. Valentine 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer & Secretary

Douglas R. Dvorak 
Vice President, Property & Casualty Claims

Adam M. Fried 
Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management

Damon Gasque 
Vice President, Treasurer

Sarah C. Gustafson 
Vice President, Controller

Jeffrey H. Jacobs 
Vice President, Underwriting & Operations

Edward M. Titus 
Vice President, Surety

Craig S. Arneson 
Assistant Vice President, Operations

David A. Christhilf 
Assistant Vice President, Actuary

Marty L. Gelhaus 
Assistant Vice President, Underwriting

John F. Hoffen, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President, Tax Compliance

ULLICO CASUALTY GROUP

Edward J. McElroy 
Interim Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Daniel Aronowitz 
President

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

James M. Paul 
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Teresa E. Valentine 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer & Secretary

Adam M. Fried 
Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management

Damon Gasque 
Vice President, Treasurer

John V. O’Brien 
Vice President, Marketing

David A. Christhilf 
Assistant Vice President, Actuary

John F. Hoffen, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President, Tax Compliance

Michael A. Saa 
Assistant Vice President, Underwriting
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SEPARATE ACCOUNT J (J FOR JOBS) DISCLOSURE

Performance results are not presented in com-
pliance with the Global Investment Performance 
Standards. 

FIRM DEFINITION
The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union 
Labor Life) is an insurance company licensed 
to conduct business in all 50 states.  ULLICO 
Investment Company, Inc. (UIC) is registered 
as a broker-dealer in the United States with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and 
with the Ontario Securities Commission.  UIC is a 
member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Au-
thority (FINRA) and of the Securities Investor Pro-
tection Corporation (SIPC) (http://www.finra.org/
index.htm, http://www.sipc.org/).  UIC markets 
and sells group annuity contracts issued by Union 
Labor Life to qualified institutional investors. 

SEPARATE ACCOUNT J (J for JOBS)
Separate Account J (J for Jobs) (Fund) is an insur-
ance company pooled separate account (a com-
mingled investment  account) available through 
the purchase of a group annuity contract issued 
by Union Labor Life.  The Fund is a monthly val-
ued, unitized account and is managed by the 
Real Estate Investment Group of Union Labor 
Life.  The Fund has not been registered with the 
SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amend-
ed (Securities Act), any state securities commis-
sion or any other regulatory authority.  The Fund 
is being offered and sold in reliance on the ex-
emption from the securities registration require-
ments of the Securities Act set forth in Section 
3(a)(2) thereof.  The Fund will only be sold to US 
pension, retirement or profit-sharing plans that 
meet the qualifications of Section 401, 404(a)(2) 
or 414(d) of the United States Internal Revenue 
Code (IRC) or any corresponding provisions of 
prior or subsequent federal laws.

The Fund portfolio consists primarily of construc-
tion and permanent mortgage loans issued for 
US commercial properties.  The Fund is bench-
marked against the Barclays Capital (Lehman) 
Aggregate Index (Index).  The Index represents 
securities that are SEC-registered, taxable, and 
dollar denominated.  The index covers the US 
investment grade fixed rate bond market, with 
index components for government and corporate 
securities, mortgage pass-through securities 
and asset-backed securities.  In contrast, the 
Fund portfolio holdings are not publicly traded 
and the holdings, characteristics, and volatility 
of the Fund portfolio may differ significantly from 
the Index.  Thus, there are significant differences 
between the securities comprising the Index and 
those included in the Fund.  Investors should 
bear these differences in mind when comparing 
the performance of the Fund to the performance 
of the Index.

CALCULATING RETURNS
The returns are actual returns of the Fund.  
Monthly returns are calculated by determining 
the change in unit value during a month. Quar-
terly returns are calculated by geometrically link-
ing monthly returns.  Single-year or multi-year 
period returns are calculated by geometrically 
linking quarterly returns.  Compound annualized 

rates of return are computed by linking the annu-
al rates of return and then appropriately adjust-
ing this cumulative total to reflect the number of 
years in the annualized calculation.

The returns include (1) realized and unrealized 
gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, 
and (c) the reinvestment of dividends and other 
earnings.  Gross returns are presented before 
investment management fees but after all 
other expenses.  Net returns are presented after 
investment management fees and all other ex-
penses.  Net returns are calculated by subtract-
ing the highest investment management fee on a 
monthly basis from the gross return.

Past performance is not indicative of future re-
sults.  Results for individual accounts and dif-
ferent time periods may vary.  Other performance 
calculations will produce different results.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT J FEES AND EXPENSES
As of January 1, 2008, the annual investment 
management fee payable by Separate Account 
J investors is 0.75% on the first $100 million 
invested and 0.60% on invested assets in ex-
cess of $100 million (both based on the Fund’s 
monthly closing value).  Union Labor Life also 
receives a Fund Servicing Fee.  As of January 1, 
2008, the annual Fund Servicing Fee is 10 basis 
points of the Fund’s assets.  Generally, Union 
Labor Life (or the borrowers) will bear the oper-
ating expenses of the Fund that are payable to 
third parties.  However, unanticipated and/or ex-
traordinary third party expenses incurred by the 
Fund (as determined by Union Labor Life) may be 
charged to the Fund.  Unanticipated or extraor-
dinary expenses include, but are not limited to, 
interest in the event the Fund’s line of credit is 
drawn down, expenses relating to loan foreclo-
sures and litigation expenses.  Any expenses that 
are charged to the Fund will be reflected in the 
Fund’s unit value.

Gross returns do not include investment man-
agement fees, which would reduce such returns.  
Gross returns do include the Fund Servicing Fee, 
which is deducted directly from the assets of the 
Fund.  Management fees are deducted monthly 
in arrears from each individual investor’s invest-
ment by redeeming investors’ units in the Fund, 
which produces a compounding effect on the to-
tal rate of return net of investment management 
fees.  The monthly fees are charged at a rate of 
1/12 of 0.75% on the first $100 million in assets 
and 0.60% on additional assets and are based 
on the closing value of the investor’s account. 

Union Labor Life reserves the right to charge 
more or less than these generally prevailing fees 
for investors investing a very small or very large 
amount in the Fund (subject to the maximum 
fee allowed by the General  Plan of Operations).  
Union Labor Life may agree to aggregate the in-
vestments of affiliated Separate Account J inves-
tors for the purpose of applying the investment 
management fee schedule and the correspond-
ing fee breakpoints.

FUND VALUATION
Consistent with industry practice, the valuation 
of mortgages held in the Fund portfolio is per-

formed generally by determining the appropriate 
discount rate for each mortgage as of the valua-
tion date and applying that rate to discount the 
future mortgage payments to present value. 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
Prospective investors in Separate Account J 
should be aware that investments in illiquid real 
estate and commercial mortgage loans are sub-
ject to additional risks, including the potential 
inability of an investor to redeem units.  In ad-
dition, fluctuations in interest rates and market 
volatility may limit available financing for real 
estate investments, thereby adversely affecting 
the value of the underlying investments, the in-
vestment return and the liquidity of the Account.

The names of clients in marketing literature may 
represent a partial client list.  Past performance 
criteria was not used to determine which clients 
would be included in the given list and Union La-
bor Life does not claim to know whether or not 
the listed clients approve or disapprove of the in-
vestment services provided.  Clients were chosen 
for inclusion on this list based on their ability to 
reflect the types of clients Union Labor Life has 
experience working for on an investment basis.

All assets and industry reports contained herein 
are unaudited.   The summation of dollar values 
and percentages reported may not equal the to-
tal values due to rounding discrepancies.  Unless 
otherwise noted, Union Labor Life is the source 
of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, per-
formance data and characteristics.  Estimates 
are preliminary and unaudited.  All information 
is shown in US dollars.

Under no circumstances does the information 
contained within represent a recommendation to 
buy or sell securities.  

All materials presented are for institutional cli-
ents only and are not intended for distribution to 
the public.

Investors should not rely on prior performance 
data as a reliable indication of future perfor-
mance.

Investors should carefully consider the invest-
ment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses of 
the Fund before investing.  For additional infor-
mation on the Fund, please call 202-682-7927.  

Updated as of 2/17/2009.
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“We’re a small player and we feel comfortable doing 
business with ULLICO because of its understanding and affinity 
with unions.  The people of ULLICO genuinely care and we trust 

they have our best interest at heart.”Michael Cramer
Plumbers Local Union 68

ULLICO Inc.
1625 Eye Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006
202.682.0900

www.ullico.com
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management’s Discussion and analysis  
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and
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over Financial reporting and 
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INTRODUCTION

The following discussion highlights significant factors influencing the consolidated results of operations and financial posi-
tion of ULLICO Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”).  It should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial 
statements and related notes included in the 2008 Annual Report.  Unless otherwise noted, estimated industry data are 
referenced from materials presented on a statutory basis by A.M. Best Co., a leading insurance industry statistical, analyti-
cal and financial strength rating organization.  Statutory data for the company is labeled as such; all other company data 
is presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  Dollar 
amounts are rounded to millions; calculations of percent changes are based on whole dollar amounts.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

As the largest multi-line insurance and financial services company owned by Labor, the Company adds intrinsic value to the 
labor movement.  The Company has gained unique experience and insight during its eighty-one years in the insurance busi-
ness.  The Company is building upon this experience to strengthen its market position by providing superior insurance and 
financial products and services for the Taft-Hartley market and for all working people.

The Company’s revenues consist primarily of premium income from The Union Labor Life Insurance Company’s (“Union Labor 
Life”) Life and Health products, fee income from Union Labor Life’s Separate Account J, fee income from investment services 
through ULLICO Investment Advisors, Inc. and premium income from its Property and Casualty (“P&C”) insurance operations 
through Fiduciary Liability, Union Liability, Workers’ Compensation, Commercial and Surety lines of business.  The Company’s 
major focus is to grow top line revenue while reducing fixed overhead.  

The revenue potential from our insurance lines of business is highly dependent on our financial strength ratings from A.M. 
Best.  As of January 2008, Union Labor Life’s rating was reaffirmed as a secure B+ stable outlook.  ULLICO Casualty Company’s 
(“ULLICO Casualty”) rating was moved from a secure B+ stable outlook to a secure B+ positive outlook due to its continued 
improvement in a number of key areas, which have led to strengthened capitalization, operating performance and internal 
control standards.  

Within the group, Union Labor Life’s capital and surplus on a statutory basis, as of December 31, 2008, is $107.8 million.  
ULLICO Casualty’s capital and surplus on a statutory basis, as of December 31, 2008, is $89.4 million.  These companies are 
well positioned for future growth.

Fin08REV.indd   2 4/28/09   4:20 PM
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rESUltS oF oPErationS

Year-to-date net income of $6.1 million at December 31, 2008 increased from a net loss of $2.4 million at December 31, 
2007. Profit/(loss) results by major business segment and the explanations of year to year variances within those segments 
are as follows:

Ullico inc. conSoliDatED HiGHliGHtS

BUSinESS Unit rESUltS (in millions)

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Life and Health                $        8.4                    $        7.6          
Property and Casualty                     8.9                        5.9    
Retirement Services                   21.9                   18.7
Exited Operations                     2.0                     (0.6)
Total Business Unit Results                   41.2                   31.6
Corporate Overhead                   (27.8)                   (19.6)
Pre-tax Operating Income                   13.4                   12.0
One Time Losses                     (3.7)                   (23.0)
Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit                     (3.6)                     8.6
Net Income/(Loss)           $        6.1                         $       (2.4)           

See below for detailed results and analysis by business unit.

Exited operations
This line item includes pre-tax net income/(loss) from the Individual Agency and Group Health lines of business that the 
Company is no longer actively marketing.    

one-time Gains/losses
The one-time gains/losses variance is due to non-recurring transactions.  The $3.7 million of expense for 2008 relates to 
restructuring within the Group Health area ($1.7 million) and additional settlement expense (2.0 million). The $23.0 million 
expense for 2007 was due to (1) the recording of a $20.0 million reserve for settlement expenses and (2) $3.0 million of costs 
related to restructuring within the Group Health area.  
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income tax Expense
As of December 31, 2008, the Company has recorded a federal income tax provision in the amount of $3.6 million. This rep-
resents an effective federal income tax rate of 37%.   No provision for a valuation allowance is included in this effective rate 
as management believes it is more likely than not that all deferred tax assets will be realized.   

corporate overhead
Corporate results were impacted by an increase in general expenses resulting from continuing investments in new product 
and marketing initiatives and related support infrastructure.  

conSoliDatED BalancE SHEEt (in millions)

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Assets

Invested Assets

Other Assets

$553.1

273.0

$602.5

208.1

Separate Accounts 3,930.8 3,579.5

Total Assets $4,756.9 $4,390.1

Liabilities
 

Policy and Claim Liabilities $469.4 $465.4

Other Liabilities 116.1 86.7

Separate Accounts 3,930.8 3,579.5

Total Liabilities $4,516.3 $4,131.6

Stockholders’ Equity

Total Capital $204.5 $203.9

Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)                                (15.2)   4.1

Retained Earnings 51.3 50.5

Total Stockholder’s Equity $240.6 $258.5

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $4,756.9 $4,390.1
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aSSEtS

Total assets of $4.8 billion at December 31, 2008 increased by $366.8 million when compared to December 31, 2007. Con-
tinued growth in Separate Account assets contributed to the overall increase.  Separate Account assets increased by $351.3 
million when compared to December 31, 2007.  An increase in Separate Account J assets of $356.9 million was driven by 
account market growth and new deposits by existing clients.  The shift of invested assets to cash (included in other assets) 
was due to the lack of available options in the short-term debt markets at December 31, 2008.

liaBilitiES

Total liabilities of $4.5 billion at December 31, 2008 increased by $384.7 million when compared to the year ended December 
31, 2007.  Total policy and claim liabilities increased slightly by $4.0 million primarily due to increased new business volume 
in P&C operations which caused growth in the unearned premium liability. The other liability component increased by $29.4 
million primarily due to an increase in the Company’s employee benefit obligations.  In addition, the continued growth in 
Separate Account assets of $351.3 million contributed to the increase as well.

StocKHolDErS’ EQUitY

Stockholders’ Equity of $240.6 million at December 31, 2008 decreased by $17.9 million from December 31, 2007.  The overall 
decrease was a combination of consolidated net income of $6.1 million; an increase of $3.6 million in unrealized gains (net 
of tax); a decrease of $22.9 million due to additional employee benefit liabilities recorded as part of the FAS 158 (Employ-
ers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans) adjustment; and the payment of a $4.6 million dividend to shareholders.  
Including the FAS 115 (valuing available-for-sale securities at market) adjustment, the December 31, 2008 book value per 
share is $26.28. Excluding this adjustment, the December 31, 2008 book value per share would have been $25.75. Book value 
per share decreased from the December 31, 2007 book value of $28.24 due to the items noted previously.  
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Financial rESUltS BY BUSinESS Unit

life and Health

The Life and Health business unit, which 
includes continuing lines of Group Life, 
Medical Stop Loss, Specialty Health and 
Direct Marketing and the legacy block 
of Individual Life and Health and Group 
Health, recorded a pre-tax gain of $8.5 
million and $5.5 million, respectively, for 
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007.  The results were impacted by non-
recurring transactions of $1.8 million and 
$1.5 million, respectively, for the years 
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Revenue (net earned premium + fee in-
come) declined in 2008 to $159.2 mil-
lion compared to $200.2 million in the 
prior year.  The reduction in revenue is 
the result of a premium decline in the 
fully insured Group Health business from 
$61.6 million to $16.6 million.  Revenue 
declined throughout 2008 for the fully 
insured Group Health business due to 
the Company’s decision to no longer ac-
tively market fully insured Group Health 
insurance to the Taft Hartley marketplace.  
Revenue from continuing lines was $137.2 
million, an increase of 3.3% over the prior 
year, led by the core Medical Stop Loss line 
of business.

The loss ratio of 77% reflects a decrease 
over the prior year loss ratio of 78%.  The 
current year results include positive re-
serve development of $6.6 million while 
the prior year results include positive 
reserve development of $8.4 million.  Ex-
cluding positive reserve development, the 
year-to-date loss ratio is 81% compared 
to 83% in the prior year.  In addition, the 

Company recorded a $1.7 million charge related to the restructuring of the Group Health business that has not been actively 
marketed since late 2006.  This transaction was classified as non-recurring.   Prior year results also reflect a Group Health 
restructuring charge in the amount of $3.0 million.

December 31, December 31,

life and Health (in millions) 2008 2007

Premiums (Earned) - Direct  $114.9  $160.1 

Premiums (Earned) - Assumed  56.3  50.1 

Premiums (Earned) - Ceded  (15.5)  (16.7)

Net Earned Premium  $155.7  $193.5 

Fee Based Income  $3.5  $6.7 

Net Investment Income  9.9  9.7 

Realized Gains on Investments  1.2  - 

Other Income  0.1  0.4 

Total Income  $170.4  $210.3 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $119.6  $151.5 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  36.9  45.2 

Commissions  2.6  4.6 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  2.8  3.5 

Total Expenses  $161.9  $204.8 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $8.5  $5.5 

Financial ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 77% 78%

SG&A Expense Ratio 24% 23%

Commission Ratio 2% 2%

TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 2%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) includes non-recurring transactions
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium
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Group life and Health

Group Life and Health, which includes 
Medical Stop Loss, Group Life, Specialty 
Health and exited Group Health products, 
recorded a pre-tax gain of $5.7 million and 
$8.7 million, respectively, for the years 
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  The 
results were negatively impacted by non-
recurring transactions of $1.4 million and 
$1.3 million, respectively, for the years 
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Revenue (net earned premium + fee in-
come) declined in 2008 to $137.2 mil-
lion compared to $176.9 million in the 
prior year.  The reduction in revenue is 
the result of a premium decline in the 
fully insured Group Health business from 
$61.6 million to $16.6 million.  Revenue 
declined throughout 2008 for the fully 
insured Group Health business due to 
the Company’s decision to no longer ac-
tively market fully insured Group Health 
insurance to the Taft Hartley marketplace.  
Revenue from continuing lines was $120.5 
million, an increase of 4.5% over the prior 
year, led by the core Medical Stop Loss line 
of business.

Net investment income decreased in 2008 
to $5.6 million compared to $6.9 million in 
the prior year.  The decline is attributable 
to the reduction of invested assets stem-
ming from the decline in revenue from the 
fully insured Group Health insurance. 

The loss ratio in 2008 was 79% percent 
compared to 78% in 2007.  The Company 
continued to adhere to strict underwriting 
guidelines during 2008.  Year-to-date positive reserve development within Group Life and Health was $6.6 million (Stop Loss 
$4.7 million, Specialty Health $0.5 million, and fully insured Group Health $1.4 million) during 2008 compared to $8.4 million 
(Stop Loss $7.4 million and no longer actively marketed Health $1.0 million) in 2007.  Excluding positive reserve develop-
ment, the year-to-date loss ratio is 84% compared to the prior year of 82%, primarily due to the experience for the Health 
Conversions and Accidental Death & Disability products.  Excluding reserve development, Stop Loss produced a loss ratio of 
83% during 2008 compared to 80% in 2007.

Sales, General & Administrative (“SG&A”) expenses were $27.3 million in 2008 compared to $35.5 million in 2007.  The 
decrease is primarily attributable to the reduction in administration fees and personnel costs, both of which are the result 
of Union Labor Life’s decision to no longer actively market fully insured Group Health insurance to new customers in the Taft 
Hartley marketplace.  In addition, legal fees and consulting fees have also decreased significantly compared to the prior year.   

December 31, December 31,

Group life and Health (in millions) 2008 2007

Premiums (Earned) - Direct  $84.6  $127.6 

Premiums (Earned) - Assumed  53.0  46.5 

Premiums (Earned) - Ceded  (2.9)  (2.6)

Net Earned Premium  $134.7  $171.5 

Fee Based Income  $2.5  $5.4 

Net Investment Income  5.6  6.9 

Realized Gains on Investments  0.7  - 

Total Income  $143.5  $183.8 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $106.1  $132.9 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  27.3  35.5 

Commissions  2.1  3.6 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  2.3  3.1 

Total Expenses  $137.8  $175.1 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $5.7  $8.7 

Financial ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 79% 78%

SG&A Expense Ratio 20% 21%

Commission Ratio 2% 2%

TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 2%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) includes non-recurring transactions
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium
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individual life and Health

Individual Life and Health, which includes 
a legacy block that is not currently mar-
keted, recorded a pre-tax gain of $1.0 for 
the year ended December 31, 2008 com-
pared to a pre-tax loss of $3.4 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2007.  Net 
earned premium decreased from $6.0 mil-
lion to $5.3 million.  The 2007 results were 
negatively impacted by non-recurring 
transactions of $0.2 million.

Individual Life and Health benefited from 
a refinement in the methodology used to 
calculate loss reserves.  During 2008, the 
incurred but unreported claim liability for 
the Long Term Care products decreased 
by approximately $0.5 million due to this 
refinement in methodology.  

For the Home Health Care policies, it was 
necessary to increase the policy reserves 
by approximately $1.2 million, during 
2007, as a result of poor experience.  Dur-
ing 2008, the experience of these policies 
has been better than expected, resulting 
in a loss ratio of 117% compared to the 
expected loss ratio of 186%.  Also, the 
experience for a specific block of pooled 
term life policies showed considerable im-
provement as the loss ratio during 2008 
was 117% compared to the ratio of 148% 
in 2007.  Claims experience within these 
lines tends to be extremely volatile.

SG&A expenses of $2.3 million reflect a 
slight decrease compared to the prior year 
of $2.6 million.  The SG&A expense ratio 
was constant at 43% during both years.  
The expenses are comprised of adminis-

tration costs as well as the amortization of previously deferred acquisition costs (DAC).  The decrease is primarily attributable 
to lower DAC amortization in the current year.

December 31, December 31,

individual life and Health (in millions) 2008 2007

Premiums (Earned) - Direct  $13.9  $15.1 

Premiums (Earned) - Assumed  3.3  3.7 

Premiums (Earned) - Ceded  (11.9)  (12.8)

Net Earned Premium  $5.3  $6.0 

Fee Based Income  $0.1  $0.1 

Net Investment Income  2.2  2.7 

Realized Gains on Investments  0.2  - 

Other Income  0.1  0.1 

Total Income  $7.9  $8.9 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $4.4  $9.4 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  2.3  2.6 

Commissions  0.1  0.2 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  0.1  0.1 

Total Expenses  $6.9  $12.3 

Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) (1)  $1.0  $(3.4)

Financial ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 82% 158%

SG&A Expense Ratio 43% 43%

Commission Ratio 3% 3%

TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 1%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) includes non-recurring transactions
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium
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Direct marketing

Direct Marketing recorded a pre-tax gain 
of $1.8 million and $0.3 million, respec-
tively, for the years ended December 31, 
2008 and 2007.  The 2008 results were 
negatively impacted by non-recurring 
transactions of $0.4 million.

Net earned premium decreased in 2008 to 
$15.6 million compared to $16.2 million in 
the prior year.  The decline is primarily due 
to several delayed marketing campaigns 
during the year, resulting in slower growth 
of premium.  In 2008, the primary source 
of new business was from the Internation-
al Brotherhood of Teamsters (IBT) Life and 
Accident & Health (A&H) products.

The year-to-date loss ratio was 58% and 
56%, respectively, for the years ended De-
cember 31, 2008 and 2007.   The increase 
in the loss ratio is driven by higher claims 
from the IBT Accident and Health product.  
In addition, the method used to calculate 
loss IBNR reserves was refined from a 
loss ratio methodology to a loss triangle 
methodology which resulted in a decrease 
in reserves of $1.8 million, primarily for 
the endorsed A&H products.  Finally, a 
reserve of $1.2 million was calculated on 
the IBT A&H product.  During prior years, 
this product had no reserves.  The refine-
ment in methodology will more accurately 
reflect the obligation of the Company.

SG&A expenses were $7.3 million and $7.2 
million, respectively, for the years ended 
December 31, 2008 and 2007.  Market-
ing and promotional expenses associated 
with the insurance products were 100% 
deferred. Deferred Acquisition Costs in-
creased to $18.4 million as of December 
31, 2008 compared to $16.6 million as of 
December 31, 2007.

December 31, December 31,

Direct marketing (in millions) 2008 2007

Premiums (Earned) - Direct  $16.3  $17.4 

Premiums (Earned) - Ceded  (0.7)  (1.2)

Net Earned Premium  $15.6  $16.2 

Fee Based Income  $0.9  $1.2 

Net Investment Income  2.1  0.1 

Realized Gains on Investments  0.3  - 

Other Income  -  0.3 

Total Income  $18.9  $17.8 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $9.1  $9.1 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  7.3  7.2 

Commissions  0.4  0.8 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  0.3  0.4 

Total Expenses  $17.1  $17.5 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $1.8  $0.3 

Financial ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 58% 56%

SG&A Expense Ratio 47% 44%

Commission Ratio 3% 5%

TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 2%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) includes non-recurring transactions
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium
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Property and casualty

Property and Casualty operations recorded 
a pre-tax gain of $8.9 million and $5.9 
million, respectively, for the years ended 
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Year-to-date gross written premium grew 
to $78.7 million in 2008 from $44.4 mil-
lion in 2007.  Current year new sales con-
tinue to exceed expectations.

Year-to-date net earned premium in-
creased in 2008 to $53.9 million com-
pared to $34.4 million in the prior year.  
The increase in net earned premium is the 
result of sales growth within core lines.  

The Commercial Lines product, launched 
in 2007, produced gross written premium 
of $23.2 million and net earned premium 
of $10.7 million.

Net investment income was stable, de-
spite challenges within the market.  The 
realized loss is primarily attributable to 
the write down of an investment in Fannie 
Mae preferred stock in the amount of $1.1 
million.
 
SG&A expenses were $12.0 million in 2008 
compared to $9.0 million in 2007.  SG&A 
expenses were impacted by increased 
costs related to new product initiatives 
and one-time costs associated with the 
implementation of phase one of a new 
policy administration system. 

December 31, December 31,

Property and casualty (in millions) 2008 2007

Premiums (Earned) - Direct  $41.6  $15.0 

Premiums (Earned) - Assumed  29.3  25.6 

Premiums (Earned) - Ceded  (17.0)  (6.2)

Net Earned Premium  $53.9  $34.4 

Fee Based Income  $0.5  $0.1 

Net Investment Income  7.6  7.7 

Realized Gains (Losses) on Investments  (0.6)  - 

Other Income  0.1  - 

Total Income  $61.5  $42.2 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $28.9  $19.7 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  12.0  9.0 

Commissions  9.2  6.0 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  2.5  1.6 

Total Expenses  $52.6  $36.3 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $8.9  $5.9 

Financial ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 53% 57%

SG&A Expense Ratio 22% 26%

Commission Ratio 17% 17%

TL&F Expense Ratio 5% 5%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income (Loss) includes non-recurring transactions
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium
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retirement Services

Retirement Services recorded a pre-tax gain 
of $21.9 million and $18.7 million, respec-
tively, for the years ended December 31, 
2008 and 2007.

real Estate investment Group (“rEiG”)
REIG, which includes Separate Account 
J, Separate Account U (USA Realty 
Fund), BuildCanada Fund, and a pri-
vately offered Real Estate Fund, record-
ed a pre-tax gain, excluding the DOL 
settlement, of $17.5 million and $16.0 
million, respectively, for the years end-
ed December 31, 2008 and 2007.  REIG 
fee income increased in 2008 to $29.6 
million compared to $26.5 million in the 
prior year.  The Company reported $1.0 
million of fee revenue from its limited 
partnership interest in its new privately 
offered real estate equity fund that 
targets investments in Sunbelt states.  
Assets under management increased to 
$3.7 billion from $3.4 billion between 
December 31, 2008 and 2007.  In April 
of 2007, Union Labor Life, by resolution 
of its Board of Directors, invested $14.0 
million of seed money in Separate Account U, a real estate equity fund.  SG&A expenses were $12.6 million and $10.1 
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  The increase is primarily related to the costs to 
develop and launch the new funds.

advisory Services (excl. “rEiG”)
Advisory Services excluding REIG, recorded a pre-tax loss of $0.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively, for the years 
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  Gross fee income increased from $9.0 million to $9.3 million between the two 
years, primarily due to the 8.5% placement fee paid by the Real Estate Investment Group.  Assets under management 
declined from $1.3 billion to $0.8 billion between December 31, 2008 and 2007.  Approximately 40% of the decline in 
assets under management was during the 4th quarter.  

consolidated company owned assets
The Company has no investment in subprime or Alt-A mortgage-backed securities and minimal exposure to the com-
mercial financial institutions struggling to meet their obligations. 

Limited partnerships (“LP”) (excluding the Company’s investment in Separate Account U) generated net investment 
income of $5.3 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  The Company’s portfolio of 
LP holdings (excluding the Company’s investment in Separate Account U) was $5.4 million as of December 31, 2008.  

Guaranteed investment contracts (“Gics”)
The GICs recorded pre-tax losses of $2.1 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  
The loss during 2008 is attributable to the write down of an investment in Fannie Mae preferred stock in the amount of 
$2.2 million.

December 31, December 31,

retirement Services (in millions) 2008 2007

Fee Based Income $           39.9 $           36.7 

Net Investment Income  12.2  10.1 

Realized Gains (Losses) on Investments  (1.4)  - 

Total Income  $50.7  $46.8 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $4.5  $6.2 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  24.3  22.0 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  -  (0.1)

Total Expenses  $28.8  $28.1 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $21.9  $18.7 

Assets Under Management $      5,185.7 $      5,428.2 

(1) Pre-tax Net Income excludes the $20 million DOL settlement in 2007 and the $1.6 million 
excise tax in 2008, relating to the 2007 DOL settlement.
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investment results (in millions)
 

December 31, 
2008

December 31, 
2007

Investment Income:

Fixed Maturities 24.5 25.0 

Mortgage Loans held for investments 1.2 1.7

Limited Partnerships 5.3 1.9 

Short-term Investments 0.9 3.2 

Other 0.4 0.6 

Investment Expenses                   (2.0)                   (2.2)

Total net investment income 30.3 30.2 

Investment interest credited to 

contract holders                   (4.7)                   (6.6)

Net realized investment gains and losses                  (0.8) -

Investment income from operations 24.8 23.6 

investments outlook

The Company believes that its investment income growth will remain level over the next year.  The net investment income 
yield is 5.2% compared to 4.9% for the prior year.   The net realized investment loss is primarily attributable to a $3.3 million 
write down of Fannie Mae preferred stock in the third quarter of 2008 offset by $2.5 million of realized gains taken in the 
third and fourth quarters of 2008. 

capital resources and liquidity

The Company’s capital management framework is designed to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient capital con-
sistent with the Company’s risk profile, all applicable regulatory standards and guidelines, and external rating agency 
considerations.  The capital management process is overseen by senior management and is continuously reviewed at the 
entity level.  Capital is generated principally via earnings.  It is used primarily to support growth in the Company businesses.  
Excess capital is used to pay dividends to stockholders and to fund future growth.

Liquidity refers to the ability of an enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash from its normal operations to meet cash 
requirements with a prudent margin of safety.  Our principal sources of cash flow from operating activities are insurance, 
investment advisory fees and investment income, while investing cash flows originate from maturities and sales of invested 
assets.  We use cash to pay policy claims and benefits; operating expenses; commissions; taxes; dividends to our share-
holders; and for the purchase of new investments.  The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows indicates that cash used in 
operating activities was $5.1 million and $1.0 million for the period ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  This 
statement also classifies the other sources and uses of cash by investing activities and financing activities and discloses 
the amount of cash available at the end of the period to meet those obligations.

When considering our liquidity and cash flow it is important to distinguish between the needs of our insurance subsidiaries, 
which include Union Labor Life and ULLICO Casualty, our principal insurance subsidiaries, and the needs of the holding com-
pany, ULLICO Inc.  As a holding company with no operations of its own, ULLICO Inc. derives its cash primarily from its operat-
ing subsidiaries. Union Labor Life on behalf of Separate Account J, executed a commitment with LaSalle Bank in September 
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of 2006 for an unsecured credit facility in the amount of $50.0 million.  The terms were finalized in March of 2007.  The credit 
facility was available to assist with liquidity issues that may have occurred in regard to funding of outstanding commitments 
in Separate Account J, a pooled first mortgage account.   The credit facility expired in March of 2008.  Union Labor Life on 
behalf of Separate Account J, executed a $50.0 million credit facility with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (“CIBC”) in 
May of 2008. In January of 2009, Union Labor Life on behalf of Separate Account J, successfully negotiated a $50.0 million 
increase to $100.0 million on its line of credit with CIBC, which was secured solely by the assets of Separate Account J.  

Union Labor Life finalized a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary 
Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  The Borrower had until December 31, 2008 to 
make draws on the credit facility. As of December 31, 2008, no draws were taken on the credit facility.  Union Labor Life has 
renewed the credit facility through December 31, 2009.

The liquidity resources of the holding company are principally comprised of dividends, limited partnership investment distri-
butions, investment income and expense reimbursements from its operating subsidiaries.

On June 6, 2008, the Board of Directors of the Ulico Standard of America Casualty Company (“USA Casualty’) declared a 
dividend to its parent, ULLICO Inc. in the amount of $10.0 million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of 
the State of California (“the Commissioner”).  Approval from the Commissioner was granted on June 18, 2008.  The $10.0 
million dividend to ULLICO Inc. from USA Casualty was paid on August 25, 2008. 

On November 25, 2008, the Board of Directors of Union Labor Life approved a dividend to its parent, ULLICO Inc. in the amount 
of $25.0 million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland (“the Commissioner”).  Ap-
proval from the Commissioner was granted on December 9, 2008.  The $25.0 million dividend to ULLICO Inc. from Union Labor 
Life was paid on December 29, 2008. The $25.0 million was subsequently paid to ULLICO Casualty in the form of a capital 
contribution on December 29, 2008.

Consolidated cash flow activity summarized by cash flow category for the periods ending December 31, 2008 and 2007 is as 
follows (in millions):

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Cash used in operating activities           $       (5.1)                 $       (1.0)       

Cash provided by investing activities                    48.4                      10.6    

Cash used in financing activities                  (19.7)                   (31.2)

Net Change in Cash           $       23.6           $     (21.6)

The primary reason for the increase in cash and short term investments during 2008 was a shift in the portfolio from long-
term bonds to short-term bonds due to cash needs at December 2008.
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otHEr mattErS

other Factors affecting our Business

In general, our businesses are subject to a changing social, economic, legal, legislative and regulatory environment.  Al-
though the eventual effect on the Company of the changing environment in which we operate remains uncertain, these fac-
tors and others could have a material effect on our results of operations, liquidity and capital resources.

inFormation aBoUt ForWarD-looKinG StatEmEntS
 
Any statement contained in this report which is not a historical fact, or which might otherwise be considered an opinion or 
projection concerning the Company or its business, whether expressed or implied, is meant as and should be considered a 
forward-looking statement as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking 
statements are based on assumptions and opinions concerning a variety of known and unknown risks, including but not 
necessarily limited to changes in market conditions, natural disasters and other catastrophic events, increased competition, 
changes in availability and cost of reinsurance, changes in governmental regulations, technological changes, political and 
legal contingencies and general economic conditions, as well as other risks and uncertainties. If any of these assumptions or 
opinions proves incorrect, any forward-looking statements made on the basis of such assumptions or opinions may also prove 
materially incorrect in one or more respects and may cause actual future results to differ materially from those contemplated, 
projected, estimated or budgeted in such forward-looking statements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about market risk
 
The Company’s objectives in managing its investment portfolio are to maximize investment income and investment returns 
while minimizing overall credit risk. Investment strategies are developed by management with final approval by the Board of 
Directors. Market risk represents the potential for loss due to adverse changes in the fair value of securities. The market risk 
related to the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio is primarily interest rate risk and prepayment risk. The market risk related 
to the Company’s equity portfolio is equity price risk.

controls and Procedures
 
The Company has evaluated the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. The 
evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Disclosure Committee and Man-
agement, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, and the Enterprise Risk Manager. Based 
upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure 
controls and procedures are effective. 

There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting identified in connection with 
the foregoing evaluation that occurred during the Company’s last fiscal year that have materially affected, or are reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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2008 management report on internal control over Financial reporting

Management of ULLICO Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision 
of the Company’s principal executive and financial officers and affected by the Company’s board of directors, management 
and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

•	 Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

•	 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipt and expenditures of the com-
pany are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

•	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposi-
tion of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based 
on the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, management has concluded that ULLICO’s 
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by Ernst & Young 
LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, as stated in their report which appears herein.

2008 management report on Disclosure controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the Company, includ-
ing its subsidiaries, is made known to the officers responsible for financial reporting, other members of senior management 
and to the board of directors. Based upon their evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures the principle executive and financial officers have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures are 
effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and 
reported within the appropriate time periods. 

The Company intends to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures on an 
ongoing basis. The Company intends to make all necessary improvements in controls and procedures and correct any defi-
ciencies that may be discovered in the future in order to ensure that senior management has timely access to all material 
financial and non-financial information concerning the Company’s business. While the present design of the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures is effective to achieve these results, future events affecting the Company’s business may 
cause management to modify its disclosure controls and procedures.  

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice President 
Chief Financial Officer

Edward M. Smith 
President
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Ullico inc.  
conSoliDatED BalancE SHEEtS  

(in thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

 aSSEtS 

 Fixed maturity and debt securities, at fair value  
(amortized cost of $451,906 & $499,065)

$                  459,541 $                  500,980

 Equity securities, at fair value (cost of $408 & $605) 168 648

 Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 17,935 19,653

 Mortgage loans, held for investment 20,028 17,111

 Short-term investments 55,468 64,145

   Total Investments 553,140 602,537

 Cash                       32,253                              -

 Accrued investment income 4,071 4,919

 Premiums, accounts & notes receivable 37,350 32,243

 Reinsurance recoverable 103,065 86,111

 Property & equipment 9,288 8,881

 Goodwill, net 3,205 3,205

 Deferred policy acquisition costs 24,579 20,177

 Current income tax recoverable 5,803 3,730

 Deferred income tax  40,914 35,363

 Other assets 12,385 13,417

 Separate account assets 3,930,835 3,579,535

 total aSSEtS $               4,756,888                 $               4,390,118
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Ullico inc.
conSoliDatED BalancE SHEEtS  

(in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

 liaBilitiES 

 Policy & claim reserves: 

   Life, accident & health & annuities $                  210,339                        $                  214,015                        

   Property & casualty 125,737 110,392

 Deposit-type annuity contracts 97,115 104,652

 Policyholder funds on deposit 4,799 8,304

 Policyholder dividends payable 4,768 9,170

 Unearned & advance premiums 26,661 18,853

   Total Policy Liabilities 469,419 465,386

 Accounts payable & other liabilities 34,195 36,771

 Reinsurance balances payable 5,515 6,960

 Accrued pension & other postretirement benefits 76,356 42,994

 Separate account liabilities 3,930,835 3,579,535

total liaBilitiES $               4,516,320                 $               4,131,646                 

StocKHolDErS’ EQUitY

 Capital stock ($25 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; issued & 6,284 6,288

   outstanding 251,351 at 12/31/08 and 251,501 at 12/31/07) 

 Class A common stock, voting ($1 par value; 12,000,000  shares authorized; 8,149 8,149

   issued & outstanding 8,148,883 at 12/31/08 and 12/31/07) 

 Class B common stock, nonvoting ($1 par value; 12,000,000 shares authorized; 753 753

   issued & outstanding 753,485 at 12/31/08 and 12/31/07) 

 Additional capital paid-in 189,305 188,691

 Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss):

   Unrealized investment gains, net of deferred tax                                                                                                           4,882     1,323

   Pension liability adjustment, net of deferred tax              (20,150)    2,788

   Total accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)      (15,268) 4,111

 Retained earnings  51,345 50,480

total StocKHolDErS’ EQUitY  $                  240,568                      $                  258,472                     

total liaBilitiES & StocKHolDErS’ EQUitY $               4,756,888             $               4,390,118             
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Ullico inc.
conSoliDatED StatEmEntS 

oF oPErationS 
 (in thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

incomE

 Premium income: 

   Life, accident & health & annuities $              155,688 $              193,570

   Property & casualty 53,925 34,439

 Fee based income 43,411 44,003

 Net investment income 30,291 30,215

 Net realized investment gains/(losses)   (831) 35

 Other income 2,184 2,078

total incomE 284,668 304,340

BEnEFitS & EXPEnSES

 Life, accident & health & annuities 116,409 146,125

 Interest credited to policyholder account balances 4,673 6,615

 Losses & loss adjustment expenses - property & casualty 28,829 19,580

 Policyholder dividends 3,025 4,991

   Total policy benefits & claims expenses 152,936 177,311

 Commissions 11,900 10,580

 Sales, general & administrative expenses 107,491 120,244

 Net change in deferred acquisition costs (4,402) (1,384)

 Taxes, licenses & fees 7,010 8,532

 Interest expense - 6

total BEnEFitS & EXPEnSES 274,935 315,289

Net income/(loss) before federal & state income taxes 9,733 (10,949)

  Income tax benefit/(expense)                        (3,677)                                  8,591

nEt incomE/(loSS) $                  6,056 (2,358)
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Ullico inc.
conSoliDatED StatEmEntS oF 

 StocKHolDErS’ EQUitY
(in thousands)

   capital Stock
   class a 

    common Stock
class B 

common Stock

Balance, January 1, 2007  $             6,288  $              8,149  $                 753 

Balance, December 31, 2007  $             6,288  $              8,149  $                 753 

Forfeiture of capital stock (4)

Balance, December 31, 2008  $             6,284  $              8,149  $                 753 

additional capital 
Paid-in

other 
comprehensive 
income/(loss)

retained 
Earnings total

Balance, January 1, 2007  $         188,077      $            (7,496)  $            53,452  $         249,223 

Net loss (2,358) (2,358)

Change in unrealized gain on investments 6,320 6,320

Change in minimum pension liability 2,499 2,499

Change due to adoption of FAS 158 2,788 2,788

Total comprehensive income 11,607 9,249

Other 614 (614) -

Balance, December 31, 2007  $         188,691      $              4,111  $            50,480      $         258,472   

Net income 6,056 6,056

Change in unrealized gain on investments 3,559 3,559

Change in pension liability (22,938) (22,938)

Total comprehensive loss (19,379) (13,323)

Dividend to shareholders (4,577) (4,577)

Forfeiture of capital stock                       (4)

Other 614 (614) -

Balance, December 31, 2008  $         189,305      $         (15,268)  $            51,345      $         240,568   
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Ullico inc.
 conSoliDatED StatEmEntS oF caSH FloWS  

(in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income/(loss) $                     6,056 $                       (2,358)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

  Interest credited to policyholder account balances 4,056 5,904

  Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 12,043 8,050

  Capitalization of deferred policy acquisition costs (16,445) (9,434)

  Amortization & depreciation expense 1,802 1,777

  Deferred income taxes     (7,467)     (3,814)

  Realized (gains)/losses on investments, net 831 (35)

  Non-cash (gains)/losses on limited partnership investments, net (5,308) 445

  Change in premiums & other receivables (5,107) (2,600)

  Change in reinsurance recoverable/payable (18,399) 4,170

  Change in policy liabilities 15,075 (642)

  Change in accounts payable and other liabilities                           7,848 (1,806)

  Change in current income tax recoverable/payable (2,073) (2,507)

  Other, net  1,955 1,859

Cash used in operating activities $                   (5,133) (991)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales & maturities of investments:

  Fixed maturities 150,771 121,852

  Mortgage loans 8,940 15,008

  Limited partnerships 7,300 3,296

Purchases of investments:

  Fixed maturities (100,896) (107,276)

  Equity securities (3,127)             (500)

  Mortgage loans (11,857) (5,356) 

  Limited partnerships (273) (12,702) 

Purchases of property & equipment                          (2,509)                    (3,742)

Other, net   39 (30)

Cash provided by investing activities:  $                   48,388 10,550

Cash flows from financing activities

  Investment product deposits 12,245 9,031

  Investment product withdrawals (27,343) (35,285)

  Repayment of borrowings - (368)

  Dividends paid to shareholders (4,577) (4,577)

  Forfeiture of capital stock (4)                                   -

Cash used in financing activities $                (19,679) (31,199)

Net change in cash 23,576 (21,640)

Cash and short term investments, beginning of period 64,145 85,785

Cash and short term investments, end of period $                   87,721 $                       64,145
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note 1---organization & Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ULLICO Inc., a multi-line insurance and finan-
cial services holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “ULLICO” or “the Company”).  ULLICO’s primary wholly owned 
subsidiaries include The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”), ULLICO Casualty Company (formerly Ulico 
Casualty Company (“ULLICO Casualty”)), ULLICO Casualty Group, Inc. (formerly Ulico Insurance Group, Inc. (“UIG”)) and UL-
LICO Investment Advisors, Inc. (formerly Trust Fund Advisors, Inc. (“TFA”)).

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (“GAAP”).  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The 
preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates due to a number of factors, including changes 
in the level of mortality, morbidity, interest rates and asset valuations, and such differences could occur in the near term.  
The real estate category from the 2007 Annual Report has been reclassified to other assets due to the immaterial amount.

Nature of Operations
Union Labor Life was founded in 1925 by the officials of the American Federation of Labor to provide low cost insurance pro-
tection to union members and their collectively bargained union benefit plans. ULLICO Inc. was formed in 1987 to facilitate 
the restructuring of the insurance subsidiaries and to enable the Company to expand its investment services capabilities 
through non-insurance subsidiaries.  Ownership of ULLICO’s stock is restricted to international and national trade unions, 
their members, their members’ benefit funds, the Company’s pension plan and directors and officers of the Company.

The activities of the Company cover a broad range of financial services provided principally to labor unions and their mem-
bers, including life and health insurance, managed care and administrative services, property and casualty insurance, 
investment advisory services, asset management and mortgage banking and servicing activities. 

note 2---Summary of Significant accounting Policies

Invested Assets
Fixed maturity debt securities are designated “available for sale” and are reported at fair value.  The fair value of fixed ma-
turity securities is based upon independent market quotations.  Changes in fair value of securities designated as available 
for sale, net of deferred income taxes, are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly have 
no effect on net income.  Cash received from maturities and pay downs is reflected as a component of investment proceeds 
in the statements of cash flows.

Equity securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and are recorded at fair value based on independent 
market quotations, if available.  If independent market quotations are not available, fair values are based on estimates 
which utilize other valuation techniques.  The difference between cost and fair value, net of deferred income taxes, is recorded 
as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly has no effect on net income.

Limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations are recorded in accordance with the equity method of 
accounting.  

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
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Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, less impairment reserves.  For mortgage loans considered impaired, 
a specific reserve is established.  A reserve is also established for probable losses arising from the portfolio but not attribut-
able to specific loans.  Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect 
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  When a mortgage loan has been determined to be 
impaired, a reserve is established for the difference between the unpaid principal of the mortgage loan and its fair value.  
Fair value is based on the lower of either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the mortgage loan’s 
effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral.  Changes in the mortgage valuation reserves are reflected 
in realized gains or losses.  

Short-term investments include money market funds and other short-term investments whose maturities at the time of 
acquisition were ninety days or less.  These investments are carried at fair market value.

Declines in the fair value of invested assets below cost are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment losses.   The 
portfolio of investments is reviewed on a quarterly basis to determine if an other-than-temporary decline in value has oc-
curred.  The decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative criteria and qualitative information.  A number of 
items factor into the “impairment” decision including, but not limited to:  (a) materiality and length of unrealized loss, (b) the 
financial condition of issuer, (c) the business plan and trend of issuer, (d) general market conditions and industry or sector 
specific factors, (e) interest rate environment, (f) the Company’s ability and intent to hold the security to anticipated recovery 
and (g) any recent rounds of financing.  For securities that are other-than-temporarily impaired, the security is written down 
to fair value and the resulting losses are recognized in realized gains/losses in the consolidated statements of operations. 

For fixed maturity investments with unrealized losses due to market conditions, industry related events or the interest rate 
environment, where the Company has a positive intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to 
allow a market recovery or to maturity and specific evidence of deterioration of the issuers’ credit does not exist, declines in 
value are determined to be temporary.  

Policy and Claim Reserves and Policyholder Contract Deposits
Life and health insurance products consist principally of group insurance policies.  Most of the Company’s group life and 
health insurance policies are participating.  Therefore, in addition to guaranteed benefits, they pay dividends, as declared 
annually by the Company based on its experience.  The group life and health insurance claim reserves are based on projec-
tions of historical claim development.  The policy reserves are based on assumptions for mortality and morbidity, utilizing 
interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 6.0%. 

Investment-type annuity products consist primarily of guaranteed investment contracts (“GICs”) and single premium annuity 
contracts.  Annuity reserves consist principally of liabilities for group pension funds that are deposited on behalf of groups 
to provide immediate and future retirement benefits to group members.

Policy reserves and policyholder contract deposits on annuity and universal life insurance products are determined following 
the retrospective deposit method and consist of policy account values that accrue to the benefit of the policyholder, before 
deduction of surrender charges.

The reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance policies include estimates for 
losses and claims reported prior to the balance sheet date, estimates of claims incurred but not reported (based on projec-
tions of historical developments), and estimates of expenses for investigating, defending and adjusting all incurred and 
unadjusted claims.  Reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in the current 
period consolidated statement of operations.

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
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Fee Based Income
Fee based income consists primarily of revenue generated from administrative services and investment management and 
maintenance fees. Administrative service fees provided to third parties for claims processing and benefit plan administra-
tion were approximately $3.2 million and $7.3 million for December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  In addition, fee based 
income includes investment management and maintenance fees charged to Separate Accounts and third parties. Investment 
management and maintenance fees were approximately $40.2 million and $36.7 million for December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.
    
Premiums, Charges and Benefits
Premiums for life, accident and health policies are generally recognized when due.  Premiums for property and casualty are 
earned over the contract term.  Benefit claims (including an estimated provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit 
reserve changes, and expenses (except deferred policy acquisition costs) are charged to income as incurred.  

Deposits for certain investment-type annuity and universal life insurance contracts are treated as liabilities rather than 
as premiums.  Revenues for investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation, 
administration and surrenders during the period.  Expenses include interest credited to policy account balances and benefit 
payments made in excess of policy account balances.  Credited interest rates ranged from 1.75% to 6.5% in 2008 and 2007.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
The costs that vary with and are directly related to the production of certain new business have been deferred and recorded 
as deferred policy acquisition costs (“DAC”) to the extent deemed recoverable.  Such costs include commissions and certain 
costs of underwriting, policy issue and marketing. DAC associated with property and casualty insurance is amortized to 
expense as premiums are earned.  For traditional life insurance products, DAC is amortized to income in proportion to the 
estimated premiums on such business.  For annuity products, DAC is amortized to expense in relation to estimated gross 
profits.  DAC is reviewed periodically for recoverability and written down when necessary.  Anticipated investment income is 
considered when determining if a premium deficiency relating to short-duration contracts exists.

Investment Income
Investment income primarily consists of interest, dividends and net investment income from limited partnership and limited 
liability corporation interests.  Interest is recognized on an accrual basis and dividends are recorded at the ex-dividend date.  
Income from limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations is recorded based on the equity method, 
whereby earnings are included in investment income.

Realized gains and losses include gains and losses on investment dispositions and write downs in value due to other-
than-temporary declines in fair value.  Realized gains and losses on investment dispositions are determined on a specific 
identification basis.

Policyholder Dividends
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, approximately 99% of the Company’s in-force life and health business was written on 
a participating basis.  Dividends are earned by the policyholders ratably over the policy year. Dividends are included in the 
accompanying financial statements as a liability and as a charge to operations in the period incurred.

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
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Reinsurance
The reinsurance recoverable amount reported includes amounts billed to reinsurers on paid policy life and accident and 
health benefits and claims as well as estimates of amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurance on amounts that have 
not yet been paid. Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid policy benefits and claims are estimated based upon assumptions 
consistent with those utilized in establishing reserves.  Premiums, benefits and expenses are recorded net of experience 
refunds, reserve adjustments and amounts assumed from or ceded to reinsurers, including commission and expense al-
lowances.  The reinsurance balances payable amount reported includes amounts billed from reinsurers for premiums ceded 
which were written by the Company.  

Separate Accounts
Union Labor Life maintains separate account assets and liabilities, representing net deposits and accumulated net invest-
ment earnings less fees, held primarily for the benefit of tax-qualified group pension contract holders, which are reported 
at fair values in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  The Company does not bear the investment risk.  The assets 
consist primarily of equity securities, publicly traded long-term bonds, construction and permanent mortgages, real estate 
equity and short-term investments.

For the Company’s investment in Separate Account U, it allocates its proportionate interest in the separate account assets to 
the corresponding captions in the Company’s balance sheet.  The Company receives its proportionate share of the income or 
loss of the assets of the separate account.  Income is generally reinvested in the separate account. 

Income Taxes
Federal income taxes are charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as 
a result of taxable operations for the current year.  Deferred income tax assets have been recorded for temporary differences 
between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the accompanying financial statements and those in the Company’s 
income tax returns.  A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not that such an asset 
would not be realized.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Included in property and equip-
ment are capitalized costs related to computer software licenses and software developed for internal use.  Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.  Estimated useful lives of depreciated 
assets are as follows: personal computers (3 years); printers, servers, mainframe equipment, software and furniture and 
fixtures (5 years).  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the 
related lease term.  Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment was $28.9 million and $28.1 million on December 
31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  Depreciation expense was $1.8 million for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.  
The Company reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007



L A B O R ’ S  O W N  F I N A N C I A L  A N D  R I S K  S O L U T I O N S  P R O V I D E R  | 3 1

Goodwill 
Goodwill, net of amortization, of $3.2 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, represents the excess of purchase price over 
fair value of the net assets of acquired entities.  Management reviews the carrying value of acquired intangible assets to 
determine whether impairment may exist.  This review is done annually unless events suggest that an impairment may have 
occurred in the interim.  Accumulated amortization on goodwill was $0.8 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007.  

Contingent Liabilities
Amounts related to contingent liabilities are accrued if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is 
reasonably estimable.  

Reserves for Litigation
The Company is subject to lawsuits in the normal course of business related to its insurance and non-insurance products.  
At the time when pending or threatened litigation becomes known, management evaluates the merits of the case and, if the 
potential settlements or judgments are determined to be probable and estimable, a reserve is established in accordance with 
Financial Accounting Standard 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”  These reserves may be adjusted as the case develops.  
Periodically, and at least quarterly, management assesses all pending cases as a basis for evaluating reserve levels.  At 
that point, any necessary adjustments are made to applicable reserves as determined by management and are included in 
current operating results.  Reserves may be adjusted based upon outside counsels’ advice regarding the laws and facts of 
the case, any revisions in the law applicable to the case, the results of depositions and/or other forms of discovery, general 
developments as the case progresses such as a favorable or an adverse trial court ruling, whether a verdict is rendered for 
or against the Company, whether management believes an appeal will be successful, or other factors that may affect the 
anticipated outcome of the case.  Management believes adequate reserves have been established in known cases.  However, 
due to the uncertainty of future events, there can be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ from the assessments 
made by management.     

New Accounting Pronouncements

Income Taxes: Accounting for Income Taxes

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 provides guidance for how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, 
measured, presented, and disclosed in the financial statements. FIN 48 requires the evaluation of tax positions taken or 
expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Company’s tax returns to determine whether the tax positions are “more-
likely-than-not” of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. Tax positions not deemed to meet the more-likely-than-not 
threshold would be recorded as a tax benefit or expense in the current year. On December 30, 2008, FASB issued FSP FIN 48-3, 
Effective Date of FASB Interpretation No. 48 for Certain Nonpublic Enterprises (“FSP 48-3”), deferring the effective date of FIN 
48 for certain nonpublic enterprises (as defined by paragraph 289 of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes). 
FSP 48-3 defers the effective date of FIN 48 until annual financial statements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2008.   The Company has elected to defer the application of FIN 48 for the year ending December 31, 2008.  The Company has 
implemented additional procedures to identify uncertain tax positions.  The Company evaluates its uncertain tax positions 
and records a tax benefit when it is more-likely-than-not that it will prevail with regard to each uncertain tax position.  The 
Company expects that FIN 48 will not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
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Fair Value Measurements
In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (the “Statement” or “Statement 
157”). Statement 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with GAAP, clarifies the definition of 
fair value within that framework, and expands disclosures about the use of fair value measurements.

This Statement does not require new fair value measurements for GAAP. The FASB has stated it will separately consider issues 
surrounding “what” to measure at fair value and “when” to measure items at fair value on a project-by-project basis. How-
ever, the FASB will utilize the framework and the concepts that have been established in Statement 157 in making its future 
determinations regarding whether to require (or permit) the further use of fair value measurements in financial reporting. 
Statement 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (i.e., effective January 1, 2008 for calendar 
year-end entities).

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” 
(“FSP 157-2”). FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of Statement 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities to 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). Accordingly, the Company did not apply the provisions of Statement 157 
to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities within the scope of FSP 157-2.  As of January 1, 2009, the deferral from 
FSP 157-2 will no longer be effective. The Company will apply the provisions of Statement 157 to non-financial assets and 
non-financial liabilities beginning on January 1, 2009, and we do not expect the application to have a material impact on our 
consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That 
Asset is Not Active” (“FSP 157-3”). FSP 157-3 clarifies the application of Statement 157 in a market that is not active and 
provides an illustrative example of key considerations to analyze in determining fair value of a financial asset when the market 
for the asset is not active. FSP 157-3 was effective on October 10, 2008, and for all prior periods for which financial statements 
have not been issued. Any changes in valuation techniques resulting from the adoption of FSP 157-3 shall be accounted for 
as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.” The 
Company adopted the guidance in FSP 157-3 in our financial statements for the reporting period ending September 30, 2008. 
The adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In April of 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, Determining the Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the 
Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly (“FSP FAS 157-4”).  FSP FAS 
157-4 provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with Statement 157 when the volume and level of 
activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased.  The FSP also includes guidance on identifying circumstances 
that indicate a transaction is not orderly.  FSP FAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after 
June 15, 2009, and shall be applied prospectively.  Early adoption is permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009.  This 
FSP does not require disclosures for earlier periods presented for comparative purposes at initial adoption.  Revisions result-
ing from a change in valuation technique or its application shall be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in 
accordance with Statement 154.  The Company does not expect the adoption to have a material impact on its consolidated 
financial condition or results of operations.

In April of 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary 
Impairments (“FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2”).  This FSP amends the other-than-temporary guidance in US GAAP for debt 
securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary im-
pairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements.  This FSP does not amend existing recognition and 
measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities.  FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 
are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods 
ending after March 15, 2009.  If an entity elects to early adopt FSP FAS 157-4, it must also early adopt this FSP.  Similarly, if 
an entity elects to early adopt this FSP, it must also early adopt FSP FAS 157-4.  The Company does not expect the adoption 
to have a material impact on its consolidated financial condition or results of operations.
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The Company adopted Statement 157 as of January 1, 2008.  The appropriate footnote disclosures are included in Note 3, 
“Investment Securities.”

In February of 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 159 (“Statement 159”), The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets 
and Financial Liabilities.  Statement 159 allows entities to choose to measure many financial and certain other items at fair 
value.  The provisions of this standard apply only to entities that elect the fair value option (“FVO”).   The FVO may be applied 
to eligible items on an instrument by instrument basis, is irrevocable unless a new election date occurs and may only be 
applied to an entire financial instrument.  This standard requires a business enterprise to report unrealized gains and losses 
on items for which the FVO has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.  No election was made for an 
FVO for any financial asset or liability currently held and therefore does not apply to the Company for this reporting period. 
For financial assets and liabilities acquired in subsequent periods, the Company will determine whether to use the fair value 
election at the time of acquisition.  

Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits
The FASB issued FASB Statement No. 158 – Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement 
Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) in September 2006. The guidance requires the Com-
pany to recognize on the balance sheets the funded status of our defined benefit postretirement plans as either an asset or 
liability, depending on the plans’ funded status, with changes in the funded status recognized through other comprehensive 
income. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the projected benefit 
obligation, for pension plans, or the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for postretirement benefit plans. Prior 
service costs or credits and net gains or losses which are not recognized in current net periodic benefit cost, pursuant to 
Statement No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” or Statement No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement 
Benefits Other Than Pensions,” must be recognized in other comprehensive income, net of tax, in the period in which they 
occur. As these items are recognized in net periodic benefit cost, the amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income 
are adjusted. Under Statement 158, disclosure requirements have also been expanded to separately provide information on 
the prior service costs or credits and net gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income and their effects on net 
periodic benefit costs. Retroactive application of Statement 158 is not permitted.   

The Company has recorded the impact of Statement 158 on its financials for the period December 31, 2007. 

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 132(R)-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets” 
(“FSP 132(R)-1”), which requires enhanced disclosures of the plan assets of an employer’s defined benefit pension or other 
postretirement benefit plans. The disclosures required under FSP 132(R)-1 will include information regarding the invest-
ment allocation decisions made for plan assets, the fair value of each major category of plan assets disclosed separately 
for pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans and the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair 
value of plan assets including the level within the fair value hierarchy as defined by Statement 157. FSP 132(R)-1 requires 
the additional disclosure in Statement 157 for Level 3 fair value measurements, must also be provided for the fair value 
measurements of plan assets using Level 3 inputs. The disclosures in FSP 132(R)-1 are effective for fiscal years ending after 
December 15, 2009, and are not required for earlier periods that are presented for comparative purposes. The Company will 
include the disclosures required in FSP 132(R)-1 in the notes to our consolidated financial statements for the year ending 
December 31, 2009.

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007



|  2 0 0 8  A N N U A L  R E P O R T3 4

note 3---investment Securities 

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value of investments as of December 
31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2008  

Amortized Cost
Gross 

Unrealized Gains
Gross 

Unrealized Losses
Estimated 
Fair Value

U.S. Treasury and agency securities $            95.2 $            5.6 $                 - $           100.8

Corporate and other bonds 74.2 0.8 2.5 72.5

Mortgage and asset backed securities 282.5 7.9 4.2 286.2

     Fixed maturity debt securities 451.9 14.3 6.7 459.5

Equity securities 0.4 -  0.2 0.2

     total $          452.3 $          14.3 $             6.9 $           459.7

December 31, 2007  

Amortized Cost
Gross  

Unrealized Gains
Gross 

Unrealized Losses
Estimated  
Fair Value

U.S. Treasury and agency securities $          192.5 $            3.2 $             0.2 $          195.5

Corporate and other bonds 70.0 0.5 0.3 70.2

Mortgage and asset backed securities 236.6 1.3 2.6 235.3

     Fixed maturity debt securities 499.1 5.0 3.1 501.0

Equity securities 0.6 -  -  0.6

     total $          499.7 $            5.0 $             3.1 $          501.6

The Company had $53.5 million and $51.3 million of securities on deposit with state regulatory authorities as of December 
31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Additionally, certain assets of the Company are restricted under the terms of reinsurance and escrow agreements.  These 
agreements provide for the distribution of assets to the companies covered under the agreements prior to any general dis-
tribution to policyholders in the event of the Company’s insolvency or bankruptcy.  The amount of assets restricted for this 
purpose was $69.0 million and $59.1 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007



L A B O R ’ S  O W N  F I N A N C I A L  A N D  R I S K  S O L U T I O N S  P R O V I D E R  | 3 5

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2008 by contractual maturity are 
shown below (in millions):

Amortized Cost
Estimated 
Fair Value

Due in one year or less $            17.8  $         17.9  

Due after one year through five years 88.2 93.2

Due after five years through ten years 63.3 62.3

Due after ten years 282.6 286.1

     total $          451.9 $       459.5

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obliga-
tions with or without prepayment penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are included based on their final maturity. 

Proceeds from the sale of fixed maturities were $71.9 million and $6.8 million for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively.

Realized gains/(losses) on investments for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows (in 
millions):

December 31, December 31,

realized Gains/(losses) 2008 2007

Fixed maturities $             2.5        $        -        

Equity securities   (3.3)              -

Mortgage loans held for investment               -               -

Limited partnerships - -

Real estate               -               -

     total realized Gains/(losses) $          (0.8)       $        -

The Company’s investment portfolio includes $2.7 million of unrealized losses on twenty-nine fixed maturity securities that 
have been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months.  The portfolio also includes $4.0 million of unrealized losses 
on sixteen fixed maturity securities that have been in a loss position for more than 12 months. The cause of the increase in 
our gross unrealized losses for available-for-sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2008, was attributable primarily 
to a combination of reduced liquidity in several market segments and deterioration in credit fundamentals. Based upon the 
nature of the fixed maturity securities, primarily U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, the Company believes that 
each issuer will meet all of its financial obligations.  Based on these factors and the other factors described in Note 2 to the 
consolidated financial statements and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the securities to anticipated recovery, the 
Company does not believe that these unrealized losses represent other than temporary impairments.
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The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by invest-
ment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 
31, 2008 (in millions).

less than 12 months 12 months or more total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. Treasury and agency securities $                - $                - $                - $                - $                - $                -

Corporate and other bonds 36.4 2.2 8.5 0.3 44.9 2.5

Mortgage and asset backed securities 10.6 0.5 22.6 3.7 33.2 4.2

 Subtotal, fixed maturity debt securities $           47.0    $             2.7 $           31.1    $             4.0      $           78.1    $             6.7

Equity securities 0.2 0.2 - - 0.2 0.2

    total $           47.2 $             2.9   $           31.1 $             4.0 $           78.3 $             6.9   

The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by invest-
ment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 
31, 2007 (in millions).

less than 12 months 12 months or more total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

U.S. Treasury and agency securities $            7.4 $                - $           44.2 $             0.2     $          51.6 $             0.2     

Corporate and other bonds 17.1 0.2 28.9 0.1 46.0 0.3

Mortgage and asset backed securities 40.4 1.2 92.3 1.4 132.7 2.6

 Subtotal, fixed maturity debt securities $          64.9    $            1.4 $         165.4 $             1.7      $         230.3    $             3.1

Equity securities - - - - - -

    total $           64.9 $            1.4   $        165.4 $             1.7 $         230.3 $             3.1   
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Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on securities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows (in 
millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Fixed maturities $        7.6           $        1.9           

Equity securities                                                                                                      (0.2)           -

Short-term investments                        0.1 0.1

Less:  Deferred income taxes (2.6) (0.7)

      net Unrealized appreciation  $        4.9           $        1.3          

Net investment income, by type of investment, is as follows for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Gross investment income:

   Fixed maturities  $      24.5    $     25.0   

   Mortgage loans, held for investment 1.2 1.7

   Limited partnerships 5.3 1.9

   Short-term investments 0.9 3.2

   Other, net 0.4 0.6

Gross investment income 32.3 32.4

Less: Investment expenses           (2.0)            (2.2)

     net investment income  $      30.3   $      30.2  
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FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements 
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Statement 157 for all financial instruments accounted for at fair value on 
a recurring basis in the Company’s financial statements.  Statement 157 establishes a new framework for measuring fair 
value and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the framework requires fair value to be determined based on the exchange 
price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It also establishes market or observ-
able inputs as the preferred source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence 
of market inputs.
 
Statement 157 specifies that a hierarchy of valuation techniques be determined for each asset based on whether the inputs 
to the valuation technique for those assets are observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs reflect market data corrobo-
rated by independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that are not observable in an active market or 
are developed internally.  These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels:
   

•	 Level 1 valuations reflect quoted market or exchange prices for the actual or identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 
•	 Level 2 valuations reflect inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 which are observable. The inputs can include 

some or all of the following into a valuation model:
o quoted prices on similar assets in active markets
o quoted prices on actual assets that are not active
o inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves, volatilities, prepayments speeds
o inputs derived from market data  

•	 Level 3 valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant valuation inputs are not observable in an 
active market, there is limited if any market activity, and/or are based on management inputs into a valuation model.

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. In 
addition, we have an investment management team that reviews the valuation, including independent price validation for 
certain instruments. Further, in most instances, we retain independent pricing vendors to provide valuations of the assets 
and instruments held in the Company’s portfolio.
 
The adoption of Statement 157 was determined not to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position and 
results of operation.
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The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure the financial instruments at fair value.
 
Investments in Fixed Maturity and Debt Securities

All fixed maturity securities are considered available for sale and consist of: United States (“US”) Treasury notes and bonds 
which trade actively were categorized as Level 1; corporate bonds, government (“Gov’t”) or agency debt, securitized debt 
(collateralized mortgage obligation or mortgage backed security) and private placements (except where noted) have valua-
tions that use such inputs as dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, similar traded securities, and other observable 
data to generate their fair values resulting in a Level 2 categorization; the private placement security, has a valuation that is 
calculated internally using a discounted cash flow method (present value of future payments due).  The interest rate used as 
the discount rate is based on a corresponding US Treasury security maturity plus a spread.  Due to the use of unobservable 
inputs and lack of liquidity of such instruments, it has been classified as a Level 3 asset.

Investments in Equities
Equities consist of two sub-categories: common stock and preferred stock.  Both the common and preferred stock have avail-
able market or exchange quotes making them Level 1 assets.

Investments in Short-Term Investments
These consist of cash or cash equivalents, money market fund holdings and US Treasury bills.  Cash equivalents consist of 
bank deposits and certificates of deposit.  All of these instruments have readily available market or exchange prices in an 
active market making them Level 1 assets.  

Separate Account Assets
The amount shown on the balance sheet represents the total of all Separate Account assets held in each of the accounts 
managed within the Company less the amount of the Company’s holdings in Separate Account U which are included in the 
short-term investments and investments in limited partnerships (“LPs”) and limited liability corporations (“LLCs”) catego-
ries.  Assets held in the Separate Accounts consists of US Treasury bills, US Treasury bonds, cash, common stock and short 
term investments in money market funds all of which are Level 1 assets as their values are readily available in the open 
market. Corporate bonds, corporate commercial paper, government or agency debt and securitized debt are valued using 
the market approach and priced using pricing models or matrix pricing making them Level 2 assets.  Mortgage loans and 
investments in LPs and LLCs are fair valued using a discounted cash flow method and are categorized as Level 3 assets.  
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Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008 in 
order of holdings (in millions): 

General Account 
Balance Sheet Line Item

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 

12/31/2008

Equities Preferred Stock $        0.2 $             - $              - $          0.2  

Equities Total 0.2           -           -          0.2

Fixed Maturities Corporate Bonds - 72.1 - 72.1

Gov’t or Agency Debt - 50.8 - 50.8

Private Placements - 12.7 0.4 13.1

Securitized Debt - 273.5 - 273.5

U.S. Treasury Bonds 50.0 - - 50.0

Fixed Maturities Total 50.0 409.1 0.4 459.5

Short Term Investments Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.0 - - 2.0

Money Market Funds 8.4 - - 8.4

U.S. Treasury Bills 45.1 - - 45.1

Short Term Investments Total 55.5 - - 55.5

Total Investments $    105.7 $      409.1 $          0.4 $      515.2

The following table details Statement 157 measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008 for all 
Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate  
Account Liabilities” include receivables and items that are not required to be disclosed under Statement 157.

Separate Account 
Balance Sheet Line Item

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 

12/31/2008

Equities Common Stock $      54.4 $            - $              - $        54.4

Fixed Maturities Corporate Bonds - 17.9 - 17.9

Gov’t or Agency Debt - 0.8 - 0.8

Securitized Debt - 34.6 - 34.6

U.S. Treasury Bonds 1.6 - - 1.6

Fixed Maturities Total 1.6 53.3 - 54.9

       

Short Term Investments Money Market Funds 10.9 - - 10.9

U.S. Treasury Bills     9.2 - - 9.2

Gov’t or Agency Debt - 0.3 - 0.3

Short Term Investments Total 20.1 0.3 - 20.4

Mortgages Loans Mortgage Loans - - 3,653.1 3,653.1

Investment in LPs and LLCs Investment in LPs and LLCs - - 41.0 41.0

Total Separate Account Investments $      76.1 $       53.6 $   3,694.1 $   3,823.8
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The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 from January 1, 2008  to December 31, 
2008 (in millions): 

Private Placements – ULLICO Inc. Consolidated Investments

Balance, January 1, 2008  $              0.5

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 
      Included in earnings -
      Included in other comprehensive income -
  Purchase, sales, issuances and settlements (0.1)
  Transfers in and out of Level 3 -

Balance, December 31, 2008                                          $               0.4  

Separate Account Assets
                                                                           Investment in LP’s and LLC’s                            Mortgage Loans                  Total

Balance, January 1, 2008                                                             $          39.0                               $          2,849.1  $       2,888.1  

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 
      Included in earnings                                                                            2.2                                              (40.9) (38.7)
      Included in other comprehensive income                                                 -                                                     -                     -
  Purchase, sales, issuances and settlements                                         (0.2)                                              844.9                 844.7
  Transfers in and out of Level 3                                                                     -                                                     -                       -
Balance, December 31, 2008                                                        $          41.0                               $           3,653.1       $       3,694.1  

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses 
relating to assets still held at the reporting date is as follows (in millions):

            Investment in LP’s and LLC’s                                                Mortgage Loans                 Total

                                   -                                                                          (36.8)                   (36.8)

Changes in Separate Account assets are fully offset by the same change in Separate Account liabilities.  There is no impact 
on the consolidated statement of operations in regards to these changes.

There were no assets in the Company’s general account measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of  
December 31, 2008. 

Ullico inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007



|  2 0 0 8  A N N U A L  R E P O R T4 2

note 4---mortgage loans - Held for investment

Mortgage loans held for investment and the related valuation reserves are as follows at December 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Commercial mortgages  $      17.5  $      14.5

Residential mortgages 2.5 2.6

Less:  Mortgage valuation reserves - -

     net mortgage loans  $      20.0    $      17.1    

The Company’s mortgage loans held for investment, net of related reserves, for significant states at December 31, 2008, are 
as follows (dollars in millions):

Number  Balance  % of  portfolio

California 4 $      11.2 56.0%

New Jersey 3       1.7 8.5%

Maryland 8 1.3 6.5%

Virginia 2 0.1 0.5%

Other states and municipalities 9 5.7 28.5%

     total 26 $      20.0       100.0%

note 5---Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Leasehold improvements $       6.2 $       5.9

Furniture and equipment 9.0 9.4

Software 23.0 21.7

  Property and equipment, at cost 38.2 37.0

Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization (28.9) (28.1)

     net Property and Equipment  $       9.3  $       8.9
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note 6---Goodwill 

Goodwill consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Goodwill  $             4.0   $             4.0  

Less:  Accumulated amortization (0.8) (0.8)

   net Goodwill                                                                                                              $             3.2 $             3.2

note 7---Deferred Policy acquisition costs

Policy acquisition costs deferred for amortization against future income and the related amortization charged to expense are 
as follows at December 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Balance, January 1  $           20.2   $           18.8  

Costs deferred during the period:

  Marketing costs 4.3 2.7

  Premium taxes 1.9 0.6

  Underwriting, compensation and other acquisition costs 10.2 6.1

    Total costs deferred during the period 16.4 9.4

Less:  Costs amortized during the period (12.0) (8.0)

     Balance $           24.6  $           20.2  
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note 8---claim reserves

Activity in the liability for unpaid life and health claims at December 31, 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Balance, January 1 $          75.1         $          76.6

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 4.0 5.1

Net balance, January 1 71.1 71.5

Incurred related to:

   Current year 112.2 153.1

   Prior years (7.7) (11.5)

Total Incurred 104.5 141.6

Paid related to:

   Current year 66.1 106.4

   Prior years 37.1 35.6

Total Paid 103.2 142.0

Net balance 72.4 71.1

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 4.1 4.0

Total claim reserves $          76.5 $          75.1

Total policy reserves            $        133.8              $        138.9

Total life, accident & health & annuity reserves         $        210.3                       $        214.0

The Company’s life and accident & health operations experienced positive prior year development during 2008 for several 
lines of business.  The group stop loss products had positive reserve development during the year of $4.7 million.  The direct 
group medical, disability and minimum premium products performed $1.7 million better than reserve estimates. Individual 
accident & health’s prior year product reserves were increased from prior year-end by $0.6 million.  Direct marketed life 
showed positive reserve development of $1.3 million.  Individual Agency and Group Life were $0.6 million better than prior 
year estimates.  All the positive reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims 
expense.

The Company’s life and accident & health operations experienced positive prior year development during 2007 for several 
lines of business.  The group stop loss products had positive reserve development during the year of $6.9 million and mini-
mum premium had positive reserve development of $1.2 million.  The direct group medical and disability products performed 
$1.7 million better than reserve estimates. Direct group life also showed a positive reserve development of $0.5 million.  
Additionally, Direct Marketing Union Privilege accident & health and comprehensive major medical reserves were reduced, 
contributing $1.1 million improvement.  Lastly, Individual Life products contributed $0.4 million of positive development.   All 
the positive reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense.
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Activity in the liability for unpaid property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) for December 31, 2008 
and 2007 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Balance, January 1  $       110.4  $       113.9

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 28.9 33.8

Net balance, January 1 81.5 80.1

Incurred related to:

   Current year 41.9 21.9

   Prior years (13.1) (2.3)

Total Incurred 28.8 19.6

Paid related to:

   Current year                      6.6                      1.4

   Prior years 12.5 16.8

Total Paid 19.1 18.2

Net balance 91.2 81.5

     Plus reinsurance recoverables 34.5 28.9

Balance  $       125.7        $       110.4       

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced positive development from prior accident years of $13.1 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2008.  The positive development in 2008 is primarily related to the workers’ compensation and the 
professional other liability lines of business.  Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the result of claim settlements 
during the current year and as additional information is received regarding unpaid additional claims.  Recent loss develop-
ment trends are also taken into account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE.

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced positive development from prior accident years of $2.3 million 
as of December 31, 2007.  The positive development in 2007 is primarily due to the workers’ compensation line of business.  
Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the result of claim settlements during the current year, and as additional 
information is received regarding unpaid additional claims.  Recent loss development trends are also taken into account in 
evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE.

note 9---reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company assumes risks from and cedes certain parts of its risks to other insurance 
companies.  The primary purpose of ceded reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligations to policyholders.  To the extent that reinsuring companies 
are later unable to meet obligations under reinsurance agreements, the Company would be liable for these obligations.  The 
Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and limits its exposure to any one reinsurer.
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Union Labor Life maintains certain reinsurance agreements under excess of loss, quota share, and catastrophe coverage.  
For stop loss contracts issued or renewed before December 31, 2008, the Company retains a maximum of $825,000 of cover-
age per individual covered.  Effective January 1, 2009, the Company will reinsure all stop loss claims above $1,000,000 per 
individual covered. Any risk below that level will be retained by the Company.  For Group Life policies, the Company retains 
a maximum of $125,000. 

ULLICO Casualty also participated in certain reinsurance agreements.  The Company cedes business under quota share and 
excess of loss reinsurance treaties.  

The effects of reinsurance on premium income for the periods ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Life, health and annuities premium income:

  Direct $           114.7 $           159.9

  Assumed 56.3 50.1

  Ceded (15.3) (16.4)

     Net premium income  $           155.7  $           193.6

Property & casualty premiums written:     
  Direct  $             46.6         $             18.3        

  Assumed 32.1 26.1

  Ceded (19.0) (7.8)

     Net premium income written  $             59.7              $             36.6        

Property & casualty premiums earned:
  Direct  $             41.8         $             15.3        

  Assumed 29.3 25.6

  Ceded (17.2) (6.5)

     Net premium income earned $             53.9  $             34.4        

Total amounts recoverable from reinsurers at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are $103.1 million and $86.1 million, respectively.  
The reinsurers with significant balances with the Company are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Reinsurance Agreements 2008 2007

United Teachers Associates Insurance Company (“UTA”) $             9.0 $           10.5

Gerber Life Insurance Company (“Gerber”)      $             1.9  $           11.0

Munich Re America (“Munich Re”) $           14.3 $           14.5

Zurich American Insurance Company (“Zurich”) $             5.4 $             4.2

Canada Life Assurance Company and First Great West Life & Annuity Insurance Company $           35.3 $           17.7

The UTA reinsurance recoverables relate to premiums paid, commissions recoverable, paid claims and reserves on Medicare 
supplement and Medicare select insurance. Recoverables from UTA relating to paid claims are $0.7 million at December 31, 
2008 and $1.8 million at December 31, 2007.
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The Zurich and Munich Re reinsurance recoverables relate to paid claims and loss reserves on property and casualty insur-
ance.  Recoverables from Zurich and Munich Re relating to paid claims are $4.2 million at December 31, 2008 and $3.1 
million at December 31, 2007.

The Gerber reinsurance recoverable is due to the funds withheld reinsurance arrangement for group medical stop loss busi-
ness between Union Labor Life and Gerber.  Cash is distributed to Union Labor Life at certain specified periods of time.

Union Labor Life entered into a funds withheld reinsurance agreement with Canada Life and First Great West effective De-
cember 1, 2006, whereby Stop Loss business is written on Canada Life and First Great West paper.  Cash will be distributed 
to Union Labor Life at certain specified periods of time.

During 2006, certain annuity policies issued by ULLICO Life Insurance Company and 100% co-insured with Sagicor Life In-
surance Company (a Texas domestic company and formerly American Founders Life Insurance Company) were fully assumed 
by Sagicor Life Insurance Company releasing ULLICO Life Insurance Company of any current or future liability related to these 
policies.  As of December 31, 2008, there is approximately $2.4 million in reserves ceded to Sagicor Life.

Effective December 31, 2008, ULLICO Casualty commuted a reinsurance treaty with Roundstone Insurance LTD. for residen-
tial contractor general liability business.  No gain or loss was recognized on the commutation.  ULLICO Casualty recorded a 
reinsurance recoverable of $0.5 million at December 31, 2008 for return of reserves of the same amount.  The overall impact 
of the commutation on the balance sheet was a $1.5 million increase in total assets and total liabilities.

Certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up security arrangements for the Company’s 
benefit in the event of insolvency.

note 10---Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans 
The Company maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that cover certain eligible employees.  The pension 
plan’s investments include common stock of ULLICO Inc. which is independently valued.  The Company also sponsors an 
unfunded non-qualified defined benefit and a defined contribution savings and investment plan, as well as other postretire-
ment health and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.

The ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan’s investments in Union Labor Life’s Accumulation Account, Separate Accounts, and ULLICO Inc. 
Common Stock, are considered party-in-interest transactions. Fees paid by the Plan to Union Labor Life, a subsidiary of UL-
LICO, for investment management services amounted to $0.6 million for the period ended December 31, 2008.

The defined contribution plan contains both a voluntary contribution component and a profit sharing component. The Com-
pany made matching contributions to the 401(k) plan of $0.7 million in 2008 and 2007. The Company made profit sharing 
plan contributions in the amount of $0.6 million in 2008 and $0.4 million in 2007.

The Company also provides postretirement health and life insurance benefits for certain eligible employees. 

Effective December 31, 2007 the Zenith Administrators, Inc. Central Region Pension Plan was merged into the ULLICO Inc. 
Pension Plan and Trust.
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Information with respect to the Company’s defined benefit plan and asset activity and defined benefit plan obligation is as 
follows: 

Obligations and Funded Status Qualified 
Pension Benefits

non-qualified 
Pension Benefits

Postretirement 
Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

change in benefits obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $   137.7  $   142.3  $        6.7  $        7.0  $      23.0  $      22.9 

Service cost 2.5 2.8 0.1 0.1 - -

Interest cost 8.9 8.4 0.4 0.4 1.0 1.4

Plan amendments - - - - (8.6) -

Actuarial loss/(gain)        7.0 (10.1) 0.5 (0.5)           2.3         (0.3)

Benefits paid         (6.0)         (5.7) (0.3) (0.3) (1.2) (1.0)

Curtailments, settlements, and special terminations - - - - - -

Benefit obligation at end of year  $   150.1  $   137.7  $        7.4  $        6.7  $      16.5  $      23.0 

The $8.6 million decrease in the postretirement benefits obligation was due to the plan switching from a Preferred 
Provider Organization platform to a Point of Service healthcare plan.

Qualified 
Pension Benefits

non-qualified 
Pension Benefits

Postretirement 
Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets beginning of year $   124.3 $   126.7 $           -    $            - $            -   $           -  

Market adjustment (0.2) (0.7)              -                 -             -               -  

Actual return on plan assets (23.9) 3.6                -             -               -  

Employer contribution 4.0 1.1 0.3             0.3 1.2  1.1  

Benefits paid (6.0) (5.7) (0.3)          (0.3)           (1.2)   (1.1)

Administrative expenses (0.6) (0.7)              -                 -             -               -  

Fair value of plan assets end of year  $     97.6  $   124.3  $           -   $            - $            -   $           -  

Qualified 
Pension Benefits

non-qualified 
Pension Benefits

Postretirement 
Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Funded status (52.5) (13.4) (7.4) (6.7) (16.5) (23.0) 

Unrecognized net actuarial gain/(loss) - - - - - -

Unrecognized prior service benefit/(cost) - - - - - -

Accrued benefit cost - - - - - -

Other liabilities (52.5)     (13.4) (7.4)        (6.7) (16.5)        (23.0)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet  $   (52.5)  $  (13.4)  $      (7.4) $      (6.7)  $   (16.5)  $   (23.0)
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Qualified Pension 
Benefits

non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

amounts recognized in accumulated other 
comprehensive income (“aoci”) consist of:
Net actuarial loss/(gain)  $     39.6  $     (0.9)  $     (1.7)  $     (2.3)  $        3.3  $        1.0

Prior service cost 1.1 1.4 1.0 1.2 (12.4) (4.7)

Net amount recognized  $     40.7  $        0.5  $     (0.7)  $     (1.1)  $      (9.1)  $      (3.7)

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in millions):

Qualified Pension 
Benefits

non-qualified Pension 
Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Service cost  $       3.5   $        3.9  $        0.1   $       0.1   $        0.1  $        0.1 

Interest cost 8.9 8.4 0.4 0.4 1.0 1.3

Expected return on plan assets         (9.7)         (9.0) - - - -

Amortization of prior service cost 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 (1.0) (0.4)

Amortization of net/(gain) loss - 0.2 (0.1) (0.1) 0.1 0.1

Amount of loss/(gain) recognized due to a - - - - - -

   settlement or curtailment

Net periodic benefit cost  $       2.9  $        3.7  $        0.5  $       0.5  $        0.2  $        1.1 

Information for our pension plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows (in millions):

Qualified Pension 
Benefits

non-qualified Pension 
Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Projected benefit obligation  $   150.1  $    137.7  $        7.4   $       6.7   $            -  $            -

Accumulated benefit obligation 141.2 131.7 7.1 6.6 16.5 23.0

Fair value of plan assets           97.6         124.3 - - - -

The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plans and postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized from 
accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $0.1 million.
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The Company’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2008 and 2007 and target allocation for 2009 by asset 
category are as follows:

 target allocation Percentage of Plan assets

 2009 2008 2007

ULLICO common stock 6%-12% 7.9% 6.4%

Equities 35%-65% 42.3% 53.8%

Fixed maturity securities 33%-43% 49.8% 38.1%

Other 0%-6% 0.0% 1.7%

Total  100.0% 100.0%

Qualified Pension 
Benefits

non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement 
Benefits

Weighted Average assumptions  
as of December 31

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount Rate 6.25% 6.50% 6.25% 6.50% 6.25% 6.50%

Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.38% - - - -

Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.21% 4.50% 4.21% 4.50% 4.21%

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its pension and postretirement plans.

For postretirement health benefit measurement purposes, a 10.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita covered health 
care benefits was assumed for 2008.  The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% until 2018 and remain at that 
level thereafter.  

Based on the current actuarial projections, the Company expects to make contributions of up to $4.0 million to its defined 
benefit pension plan in 2009. Contributions do not reflect benefits to be paid directly from corporate assets.
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As of December 31, 2008, the following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, are expected to be paid from 
the defined benefit plans (in millions):

Qualified Pension 
Benefits

non-qualified pension 
Benefits

Postretirement
 Benefits

2009 $          6.3 $          0.5 $          1.3

2010 6.6 0.5 1.3

2011              6.8 0.5 1.3

2012              7.1 0.5 1.4

2013              7.3 0.5 1.3

2014-2018            44.0 2.2 6.3

Senior Executive Compensation Plans
The Company previously maintained a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for the benefit of certain senior executives.  
The Company no longer offers such benefits, but certain benefits claimed under the plan by one former senior executive are 
currently in dispute.  See further discussion in Note 13, “Commitments and Contingencies”.

Plan assets and liabilities were $1.4 million as of December 31, 2008 and $2.2 million as of December 31, 2007. The assets 
for this plan are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
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note 11 --- income taxes

The Company files a consolidated life-nonlife Federal income tax return including all eligible subsidiaries.  The components 
of income tax (expense)/benefit are as follows (in millions):

December  31, December  31,
2008 2007

Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current    $           1.3 $            2.0

  Deferred                 (4.9)                           6.7 

     Subtotal Federal income tax (expense)/benefit                 (3.6)                        8.7  

State Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current    $         (0.1)    $          (0.1)

  Deferred                 -                  -

     Subtotal State income tax (expense)/benefit                 (0.1)          (0.1)
income tax (Expense)/Benefit    $         (3.7)    $            8.6

The reconciliation of Federal taxes computed at the statutory rate of 35% to the income tax (expense)/benefit is as follows 
(in millions):

December 31, 
2008

December 31, 
2007

Federal income tax (expense)/benefit at statutory rate  $          (3.4)  $              3.8   

Valuation Allowance - 6.9

Other, net              (0.2)                    (2.0)  
     Federal income tax (Expense)/Benefit $          (3.6)    $              8.7  
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The tax effects of items comprising the Company’s net Federal deferred income tax asset/(liability) are as follows at Decem-
ber 31, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

December  31, December  31,
2008 2007

Federal Deferred Tax Asset

   Insurance reserves 7.6 5.5

   Pension and postretirement benefits 27.1 17.1

   Policyholder dividends 1.0 2.5

   Deferred partnership losses 2.0 5.3

   Tax net operating loss carryforwards 7.8 9.6

   Tax credit carryover 1.7 1.7

   Other 4.3 1.7

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax asset 51.5 43.4

Federal Deferred Tax Liability

   Deferred policy acquisition costs and ceding commissions 9.4 8.0

   Unrealized capital gains 1.2                          -

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax liability 10.6 8.0

Net Federal Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  $       40.9  $       35.4 

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has valued its net deferred tax asset in the amount of $40.9 million which represents 
the Company’s view that sufficient net positive evidence exists to support the realization and reporting of the amount as a net 
deferred tax asset within the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income 
Taxes.  The Company has valued its net deferred tax asset at the amount deemed more likely than not by management to be 
realized, based on projections of future taxable income.

The $5.5 million increase in the net deferred tax asset from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 is comprised of the 
following components (in millions):

Deferred taxes recorded on pension liability adjustments $12.3

Deferred taxes recorded on unrealized investment gains   (1.9)

Deferred taxes recorded on net income   (4.9)

Total   $5.5

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has federal regular-tax net operating loss carry forwards of $22.2 million, which will 
be used to offset future taxable income.  Regular tax net operating loss carry forwards consist of $10.5 million for the life 
companies and $11.7 million for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2022 and 2024, respectively.

The Company paid $0.1 million in federal income tax in 2008 and 2007.  

As of December 31, 2008, for alternative minimum tax purposes, the Company has operating loss carry forwards of $20.8 
million, consisting of $8.3 million for the life companies and $12.5 million for the non-life companies which start to expire 
in 2022 and 2024, respectively.  
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note 12---Borrowings and other actions related to Separate account J

Union Labor Life on behalf of Separate Account J, executed a commitment with LaSalle Bank in September of 2006 for an 
unsecured credit facility in the amount of $50.0 million.  The terms were finalized in March of 2007.  The credit facility was 
available to assist with liquidity issues that may have occurred in regard to funding of outstanding commitments in Separate 
Account J, a pooled first mortgage account.   The credit facility expired in March of 2008.  Union Labor Life on behalf of Sepa-
rate Account J, executed a $50.0 million credit facility with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (“CIBC”) in May of 2008. In 
January of 2009, Union Labor Life on behalf of Separate Account J, successfully negotiated a $50.0 million increase to $100.0 
million on its line of credit with CIBC, which was secured solely by the assets of Separate Account J.  

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans for Separate Account 
J of approximately $2.3 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively.  In order to meet these funding requirements, the Company has 
temporarily suspended current withdrawal requests of group annuity contract holders of Separate Account J as allowed for in 
the group annuity contract.   Depending on economic conditions that exist during 2009, this suspension of withdrawals could 
continue through the entire year.  Pursuant to the terms of the group annuity contract, such suspended withdrawal requests 
will continue to follow the fortunes of Separate Account J and reflect any gains and losses of the Separate Account until the 
valuation date on which the deduction is made.  
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note 13---commitments and contingencies 

leases
The Company leases office space, data processing and copier equipment and certain other equipment under operating 
leases expiring on various dates between 2009 and 2020.  Most of the leases contain renewal and purchase options based 
on prevailing fair market values.  Lease payments totaled $7.3 million and $7.5 million for the periods ended December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Aggregate future minimum rent payments required under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2008 
are summarized as follows (in millions):

Period ending 
December 31

minimum lease 
Payments

2009 $7.1             

2010 6.2

2011 6.0

2012 6.2

2013 6.3

Thereafter 13.1

total  $           44.9

Financial instruments with off-Balance-Sheet risk
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet its 
financing needs.  These financial instruments include investment commitments related to separate account mortgage loans.  
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized 
in the balance sheet.

Union Labor Life finalized a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary 
Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  The Borrower had until December 31, 2008 to 
make draws on the credit facility. As of December 31, 2008, no draws were taken on the credit facility.  Union Labor Life has 
renewed the credit facility through December 31, 2009.

FDic limit
The Company maintains its own funds in bank accounts with balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

company-owned limited Partnerships
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had $1.4 million in outstanding investment commitments relating to limited 
partnerships.
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audits, investigations, litigation and Unasserted claims

investigations and litigation relating to the Former Stock repurchase Program and other alleged Breaches of Duties 
by Former Ullico officers

In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation and Related Cases Concerning Former ULLICO Officers
In July 2003, former Chief Legal Officer Joseph A. Carabillo, whose employment with ULLICO was terminated for cause for 
breaches of fiduciary duty, instituted an action in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia styled Carabillo v. ULLICO 
Inc. (the “Carabillo I” action) alleging breaches of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, wrongful termination and 
breach of contract for failure to provide pension benefits under the Company’s Early Retirement Program.  Mr. Carabillo also 
sought other damages in excess of $1.5 million.  In November 2003, an Answer and Counterclaim was filed on behalf of UL-
LICO Inc., The Union Labor Life Insurance Company, and two of ULLICO’s senior executive compensation plans, ULLICO Inc.’s 
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan and Union Labor Life’s Auxiliary Retirement Benefits Plan, against Carabillo, 
former CEO, Chairman of the Board and President Robert A. Georgine, former Chief Financial Officer John K. Grelle and former 
Executive Vice President, James W. Luce.  The Amended Answer and Amended Counterclaim sought, inter alia, (1) the recovery 
of stock profits, certain distributions under the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, and other damages for breach of 
fiduciary duty; and (2) judicial declarations with respect to the parties’ rights under the Non-Qualified Deferred Compensa-
tion Plan and the Auxiliary Retirement Benefits Plan, and Mr. Georgine’s Employment Agreement (included as a result of a 
breach of contract by Mr. Georgine), Stock Purchase and Credit Agreement, and Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement.

In August 2003, Luce filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against the Union Labor Life 
Auxiliary Retirement Benefits Plan (the “Auxiliary Plan”) and The Union Labor Life Insurance Company alleging a vested right 
to receive a monthly annuity payment of retirement benefits under the Auxiliary Plan (the “Luce I” action).  Luce’s payments 
under the Auxiliary Plan were suspended pending an investigation of his conduct relating to alleged breaches of fiduciary du-
ties by Luce.  On October 6, 2003, an Amended Complaint was filed adding as defendants ULLICO Inc. and the Non-Qualified 
Deferred Compensation Plan.  On November 3, 2003, an Answer was filed on behalf of the defendants.  On January 23, 2004, 
the case was transferred to the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia.  

In late 2003, Carabillo, Luce and Georgine filed motions to dismiss ULLICO’s Counterclaim in Carabillo I.  On January 16, 
2004, ULLICO filed an action styled ULLICO Inc. v. Georgine in the Superior Court of the District of Columbia (the “Superior 
Court” action) as a protective measure, alleging the same claims against the same parties as in its Counterclaim in the 
Carabillo I action.  The Superior Court action was then stayed by agreement of the parties pending the outcome of the motions 
to dismiss the Counterclaim in the Carabillo I action.

In October 2004, the Court granted in part and denied in part Luce’s motion to dismiss ULLICO’s Counterclaim in Carabillo I.  
Luce subsequently replied to the remaining counts of ULLICO’s Counterclaim in Carabillo I and denied liability.  On October 
21, 2004, ULLICO filed an action styled ULLICO Inc. v. Luce (the “Luce II” action), which asserts against Luce the claim that 
was dismissed without prejudice from the Carabillo I Counterclaim.  Luce filed a motion to dismiss the Luce II complaint on 
November 30, 2004, which was denied.  

On May 13, 2004, Carabillo filed a second lawsuit against the Company’s pension plan in an action styled Carabillo v. UL-
LICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust, et al. (the “Carabillo II” action), in which he alleged that he was improperly denied certain 
pension, retiree health insurance and auxiliary retirement benefits.  The complaint alleged several causes of action under 
ERISA, sought an award of the various benefits and a declaration of Carabillo’s rights, and sought costs and attorney’s fees.  
Carabillo requested a temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction, but the court denied that relief.  Carabillo ap-
pealed the denial of the preliminary injunction but the Court  of Appeals affirmed the denial.  The Defendants in Carabillo II 
filed an Answer and Counterclaim on July 26, 2004 alleging breach of fiduciary duty against Carabillo, Georgine, Grelle and 
Luce. The former officers subsequently filed motions to dismiss the Counterclaim, which were denied.
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In March 2005, the Court granted in part and denied in part Carabillo’s and Georgine’s motions to dismiss ULLICO’s Counter-
claim in Carabillo I.  ULLICO subsequently moved to lift the stay on the parallel counts of the Superior Court action that were 
dismissed without prejudice from the Carabillo I Counterclaim.  Discovery is now concluded in the Superior Court action. The 
parties filed cross-motions for summary judgment which the Court has denied.  In August 2008, the Court entered an order 
staying the case. A status conference is scheduled for July of 2009.

On June 1, 2005, the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia issued a Consolidation and Scheduling Order that con-
solidated all claims in Carabillo I, Carabillo II, Luce I and Luce II cases for pretrial purposes.  The Court did not set a trial 
date.   The consolidated matter bears the caption In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation, Master Docket No. and Case No. 1:03CV01556 
(RJL).  Pursuant to the Order, the individuals have filed a Consolidated Complaint against the ULLICO parties and the ULLICO 
parties have filed a Consolidated Counterclaim against the individuals.  The ULLICO parties named in the case were ULLICO 
Inc., the ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust, the Administrator of the ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust, the Plan Admin-
istration Committee of the ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust, the ULLICO Inc. Employees’ Life And Health Welfare Plan, 
the Administrator of the ULLICO Inc, Employees’ Life and Health Welfare Plan, The Union Labor Life Insurance Company, The 
Union Labor Life Auxiliary Retirement Benefits Plan, the Administrator of The Union Labor Life Auxiliary Retirement Benefits 
Plan, The ULLICO Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, and Mark Singleton in his capacity as a Plan Administrator. 

In July 2005, after the ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust denied Luce’s appeal of the suspension of his retirement benefits, 
Luce filed an action (the “Luce III” action) in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against the ULLICO 
Pension Plan and Trust and the members of the Plan Administration Committee to contest the denial of his appeal.  In Sep-
tember 2005, the Luce III case was transferred to the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia and assigned to the judge 
presiding over the consolidated In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation.  The defendants moved to dismiss the complaint, but the court 
denied the motion and the defendants have filed an answer denying liability.

Discovery in the In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation and Luce III action concluded and the parties filed summary judgment motions in 
2008, which the court decided in March 2009. The court determined that the fiduciary duty issues relating to the ULLICO Inc. 
Pension Plan and Trust could not be decided on summary judgment and required a trial on the merits; that Carabillo, Grelle 
and Luce could not be liable under ERISA for certain claims relating to the Welfare Plan, Auxiliary Plan and Non-Qualified 
Deferred Compensation Plan, but may be liable under state law for their actions in connection with the Auxiliary Plan and 
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan; and that a claim against Carabillo for professional negligence was not within 
the court’s jurisdiction.  (ULLICO is seeking to assert the professional negligence claim in the Superior Court action.)  No trial 
date on the surviving claims has been scheduled.  In March 2009, the ULLICO parties filed a motion for summary judgment 
on numerous claims asserted by Carabillo in the Consolidated Complaint on the ground that those claims are barred as a 
result of Carabillo’s execution of a release in 2009 in connection with an application for qualified pension benefits.  The mo-
tion remains pending. 

In November 2005, former Chairman, CEO, President and Pension Plan fiduciary Robert A. Georgine entered into a settlement 
of the claims by and against the ULLICO entities.  As a result of the settlement, ULLICO received total cash and tax benefits 
in excess of $12 million, together with the cancellation of unfunded liabilities under contractual arrangements previously in 
place with Georgine which have now been undone under the settlement.  Georgine was dismissed from litigation.
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ULLICO Inc. v. National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA, et al.

In November 2005, ULLICO filed an action against the insurance carriers for its employee benefit plan fiduciary liability, 
directors’ and officers’ liability, and professional liability coverages.  The suit, which was filed in the U.S. District Court for 
the Eastern District of Virginia, also names as defendants Carabillo, Luce and Grelle.  The complaint alleges that the carriers 
have breached the insurance policies by failing and refusing to pay the defense costs of ULLICO, the Pension Plan and the 
Plan fiduciaries in connection with certain DOL investigations described herein and the claims asserted by the former ULLICO 
officers in the litigation described above, and that the carriers have otherwise improperly denied coverage.  The complaint 
also alleges that the insurers have improperly reimbursed certain defense costs of the individual defendants in preference 
to reimbursing ULLICO.  The complaint, which was amended in December 2005, seeks damages, injunctive relief, an order of 
specific performance, costs and attorneys’ fees.  In January 2006, the Court transferred the case to the U.S. District Court for 
the District of Columbia, where it has been assigned to the judge presiding over the In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation.  The insurers 
filed a counterclaim in which they seek a declaration that they are not required to provide coverage to ULLICO. ULLICO and 
the insurers filed cross-motions for summary judgment on certain of the coverage issues, and the motions remain pending.  
The insurers filed a motion to stay the case pending the resolution of the In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation which the Court granted.  
In February 2009, Carabillo filed a motion to lift the stay and the motion remains pending. No trial date has been scheduled.  

Suits Against Former ULLICO Directors

In June 2006, ULLICO filed four separate lawsuits against four of its former directors, William Bernard, Bill Casstevens, James 
McNulty and Jacob West seeking the recovery of stock profits earned by those directors.  All four lawsuits were filed in the 
Superior Court for the District of Columbia.  Mr. Casstevens subsequently removed his suit to the United States District Court 
for the District of Columbia, where it was assigned to the judge presiding over the consolidated In re ULLICO Inc. Litigation 
and the Luce III action.  Mr. West died on April 5, 2007 and ULLICO entered into a settlement of its claim with the West estate. 
ULLICO has settled its claims against Messrs. Bernard and McNulty and those cases have been dismissed. ULLICO filed a 
motion for summary judgment in the Casstevens matter, which the court denied.  No trial date has been set in that case. 

other legal matters

DOL Investigation of ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and Trust and the Zenith Pension Plan, the Plan’s Administrative Committee 
and The Union Labor Life Insurance Company relating to Separate Account Investments and Related Fees

In 2002, the United States Department of Labor (“DOL”) Employee Benefits Security Administration began an investigation 
of the ULLICO Inc. Pension Plan and the Zenith Administrators, Inc. Pension Plan (the “Plans”) that eventually extended to 
The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”).  The investigation  focused on the provision of investment and 
other services to the Plans by Union Labor Life, as well as on the fee arrangements for Separate Account J, a pooled first mort-
gage separate account, in which the Plans and unaffiliated plans invest.  The DOL conducted interviews and administrative 
depositions of Union Labor Life employees and members of the Employee Benefit Plan’s Administrative Committee (“the Com-
mittee”).  The Committee and Union Labor Life have cooperated fully with the DOL investigation.  They entered into several 
tolling agreements with DOL, the most recent of which tolled the expiration of the statute of limitations through November 30, 
2007, for any claims against the members of the Committee relating to their roles as fiduciaries of the Plans or against Union 
Labor Life in connection with (a) fees collected by Union Labor Life as manager of Separate Account J, (b) Union Labor Life’s 
retention of fees paid by Separate Account J borrowers or prospective borrowers, and (c) all direct or indirect fees collected by 
Union Labor Life as a fiduciary to Separate Account J.  Following a series of meetings from early to mid-November 2007, the 
parties reached an agreement to resolve the investigation. Pursuant to a consent decree entered by the U.S. District Court for 
the District of Columbia on November 19, 2007, the DOL released potential claims against Union Labor Life and the members 
of the Committee in exchange for a payment from Union Labor Life in the amount of $20.0 million (of which approximately 
$16.7 million has been returned to investors in Separate Account J and $3.3 million has been reserved for excise tax and 
required ERISA payments) and the implementation of a new, simplified fee structure related to Union Labor Life’s manage-
ment of Separate Account J.  Union Labor Life did not admit that any of the fees examined by the DOL were unlawful or that 
the Company acted in any way in violation of law. In addition to the $3.3 million referred to above, the Company recorded a 
liability of $1.6 million in 2008 for additional anticipated excise tax liabilities. In March 2009, the Company entered into an 
agreement that resolved the excise tax liability issue with the Internal Revenue Service, and pursuant to which the Company 
paid $4.96 million to the United States Treasury on March 27, 2009.  
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Trustees of the IBEW Local 26 Pension Trust Fund (Heller, et al.) v. Trust Fund Advisors, Inc.

On December 31, 2003, the Trustees of the IBEW Local 26 Pension Trust Fund (the “Fund”) filed a lawsuit to allege breach of 
fiduciary duties by Trust Fund Advisors (“TFA”), its retained investment sub-advisor, Nicholas-Applegate Capital Manage-
ment (“NACM”), and Allianz AG, NACM’s parent corporation.  From 1995 to 2001, the Fund invested assets with TFA that 
NACM managed as sub-advisor.  The Trustees allege that, in breach of alleged duties arising under ERISA, TFA and NACM 
failed to provide them with material information about changes in the senior portfolio management staff at NACM, thereby 
inducing the Trustees to leave their investment with NACM during a period of substantial market losses.  The Trustees also 
contend that NACM’s acquisition by Allianz AG in 2000 caused undue disruption and inferior portfolio management perfor-
mance.  In addition, the Trustees allege that the investment management process of NACM did not have sufficient standards 
and controls to minimize risk when market conditions changed.  The Trustees allege that the Fund suffered damages of at 
least $15 million. The suit seeks recovery of investment losses, disgorgement of management fees, costs, interest and attor-
ney’s fees.  TFA believes that it has meritorious defenses to the claim and has filed an answer denying liability.  Discovery is 
underway.  In 2007, the court ordered the parties to participate in mediation, but the mediation did not result in a settlement.  
No trial date has been scheduled. 

Trustees of the Operating Engineers Pension Trust Fund (Horst, et al.) v. Trust Fund Advisors, Inc.

On April 19, 2004, the Trustees of the Operating Engineers Pension Trust Fund (the “Fund”) filed a lawsuit to allege breach of 
fiduciary duties by TFA and its retained investment sub-advisor, Nicholas-Applegate Capital Management (“NACM”).  From 
1995 to 2001, the Fund invested assets with TFA that NACM managed as sub-advisor.  In addition, the Trustees allege that 
the investment management process of NACM did not have sufficient standards and controls to minimize risk when market 
conditions changed.  The Trustees allege that, in breach of alleged duties arising under ERISA, TFA and NACM failed to 
provide them with material information about changes in the senior portfolio management staff at NACM, thereby inducing 
the Trustees to leave their investment with NACM during a period of substantial market losses. The Trustees also contend 
that NACM’s acquisition by Allianz AG in 2000 caused undue disruption and inferior portfolio management performance.  
The Trustees allege that the Fund suffered damages of at least $15 million.  The suit seeks recovery of investment losses, 
disgorgement of management fees, costs, interest and attorney’s fees.  TFA believes that it has meritorious defenses to the 
claim and has filed an answer denying liability.  Discovery is underway. In 2007, the court ordered the parties to participate 
in mediation, but the mediation did not result in a settlement.  No trial date has been scheduled. 
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In Re Global Crossing Ltd, No. 02-40188 (REG); Global Crossing Ltd. Estate Representative v. Winnick, Adversary Proceeding 
No. 04-2137(REG) (S.D. N.Y. filed February 6, 2004) 

On February 6, 2004, an adversary proceeding was filed in the Global Crossing bankruptcy proceedings in United States 
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York.  Claims asserted against ULLICO and certain affiliated companies 
seek to recover amounts invested in Global Crossing.  The reference to the Bankruptcy Court was recalled and the action was 
transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. After ULLICO filed a motion to dismiss the 
Estate’s complaint, the court dismissed some of the claims asserted against ULLICO but permitted other claims to remain 
pending. The Estate has filed with the court a statement of claim that indicates that the remaining claim it intends to pursue 
is for breach of alleged fiduciary duties by ULLICO as a minority stockholder in connection with a May 1999 tender offer to 
Global Crossing shareholders of shares in US West. ULLICO has denied liability. Discovery has concluded but no trial date 
has been set.

The Hotel Employees and Restaurant Employees International Union Welfare Fund v. SAV-Rx, LLC, A&A Drug Company, and 
the Union Labor Life Insurance Company.  Civil Action No. 07CV0916 (U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, 
Eastern Division). 

The Fund filed an action against Union Labor Life, SAV-Rx, and the corporate parent of SAV-Rx, A&A Drug Company.  The 
claims against Union Labor Life sought compensatory and punitive damages for alleged negligent misrepresentation and 
breach of contract. As alleged, these claims sought to hold Union Labor Life liable for allegedly failing to prevent or discover 
the conduct of SAV-Rx in allegedly over-billing the Fund for medication dispensed by pharmacies to Fund participants.  Union 
Labor Life filed a cross claim against SAV-Rx and A&A for indemnity as to any litigation expenses and/or liability incurred 
by Union Labor Life as a result of this suit, but the cross claim was later voluntarily withdrawn by Union Labor Life in the 
court case, without prejudice, in light of a binding arbitration provision in the agreement between Union Labor Life and SAV-
Rx/A&A.  Union Labor Life has reserved its right to pursue its indemnity claim against SAV-Rx/A&A in arbitration at a later 
time.  SAV-Rx/A&A and the Fund reached a settlement of the claims between them and the lawsuit was dismissed in May 
2008. Union Labor Life has a claim against SAV-Rx/A&A for indemnification that has not been resolved but is not currently 
in litigation.

Donald J. Trump, et al. v. Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, et al. (including The Union Labor Life Insurance Company¸ 
Index No. 26841/08 (Supreme Court, County of Queens, N.Y.)

In November 2008, the developer of Trump International Hotel Tower in Chicago, Illinois (the “Project”), filed suit to contest 
certain obligations of the developer and lenders under loan agreements relating to the Project.  Union Labor Life, on behalf of 
Separate Account J, is a participating lender in the Project along with numerous other lenders.  Among other things, the de-
veloper contends that a force majeure event has occurred that permits certain adjustments to the pertinent loan agreements, 
including adjustments to repayment terms.  The developer seeks confirmation by the court of a right to such adjustments.  
The complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief, damages, costs and attorney’s fees.  Although all participating lend-
ers, including Union Labor Life, have been named as defendants in the action, the lead lender is principally responsible for 
seeking a resolution to the dispute.  No trial date has been set and no relief has been awarded by the court.

ULLICO and its subsidiaries are also involved in other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of their business. In 
the opinion of management, the above investigations, litigation, and unasserted claims will not have a material impact on 
the financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow of the Company.
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note 14---capital

The Company declared a $0.50 per share dividend on April 24, 2008 which was paid on May 12, 2008.  The amount of the 
dividend was $4.6 million. The dividend was recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity.

At December 31, 2008, the insurance subsidiaries had statutory capital and surplus of $204.5 million, determined in ac-
cordance with statutory accounting practices utilized in filings with insurance regulatory authorities.  For the period ending 
December 31, 2008, the insurance subsidiaries had a combined statutory net income of $8.3 million. At December 31, 2008, 
the subsidiaries combined statutory capital and surplus exceeds the authorized control level risk based capital by $175.1 
million.  Access to the capital and surplus within the insurance subsidiaries is restricted by state regulations.  Currently, no 
dividends can be paid by the property and casualty insurance companies to ULLICO during 2009 without approval from the 
Insurance Commissioner of the insurance companies’ domiciled state.  The maximum dividend that Union Labor Life could 
pay to ULLICO during 2009 on a statutory basis without approval from the Insurance Commissioner is approximately $4.1 
million.  

On June 6, 2008, the Board of Directors of the Ulico Standard of America Casualty Company (“USA Casualty”) declared a 
dividend to its parent, ULLICO Inc. in the amount of $10.0 million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of 
the State of California (“the Commissioner”).  Approval from the Commissioner was granted on June 18, 2008.  The $10.0 
million dividend to ULLICO Inc. from USA Casualty was paid on August 25, 2008. 

On November 25, 2008, the Board of Directors of Union Labor Life approved a dividend to its parent, ULLICO Inc. in the amount 
of $25.0 million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland (“the Commissioner”).  Ap-
proval from the Commissioner was granted on December 9, 2008.  The $25.0 million dividend to ULLICO Inc. from Union Labor 
Life was paid on December 29, 2008. The $25.0 million was subsequently paid to ULLICO Casualty in the form of a capital 
contribution on December 29, 2008.

note 15---comprehensive income/(loss)

Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the periods ended at December 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of the following (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Net income/(loss) $            6.1    $       (2.4)    

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:

   Unrealized holding gains/(losses) arising during the period 4.5 6.3

   Reclassification adjustment for unrealized gains/(losses) on securities included in net income                    (1.0)         -

   Change in unrealized gain on securities, net of $1.9 and $3.4 in tax for  
   December 31, 2008 and 2007

      3.5       6.3

   Change in minimum pension liability, net of $1.3 in tax for December 31, 2007 -                     2.5

   Change in pension liability, net of $(12.3) and $1.5 in tax for December 31, 2008 and 2007 (22.9)                     2.8  

Other comprehensive gains/(losses) (19.4) 11.6

Comprehensive income/(loss) $       (13.3)    $          9.2    
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note 16---Fair Value of Financial instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” (“Statement 
107”) requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the Balance 
Sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available for identical 
or comparable financial instruments, fair values are based on estimates using the present values of estimated cash flows 
or other valuation techniques.  Estimated fair values can be significantly affected by the methods and assumptions used, 
including the discount rate and estimates as to the amounts and timing of future cash flows.  Accordingly, the fair values 
may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could have been realized by the Company as of year-end 
or that will be realized in the future.

Fair values for the Company’s insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed under 
Statement 107.  However, the estimated fair value and future cash flows of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken 
into consideration in the Company’s overall management of interest rate risk, which minimizes exposure to changing interest 
rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.  Management believes 
that disclosing the estimated fair value of all assets without a corresponding revaluation of all liabilities associated with 
insurance contracts can be misinterpreted.  The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the actual value 
of the Company.

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments: 
the carrying amount of cash and short-term investments is considered a reasonable approximation for their fair value.  Fair 
values for fixed maturity securities and equity securities are based upon quoted market prices.  If independent market quota-
tions are not available, fair values are based on estimates which utilize other valuation techniques.

Limited partnerships and limited liability corporations are reported under the equity method of accounting.  The carrying 
value of the limited partnerships and limited liability corporations is assumed to approximate its fair value.  The fair value 
of mortgage loans are estimated through the use of discounted cash flow techniques using interest rates currently being 
offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar characteristics are aggregated 
for purposes of this analysis.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with defined maturities and policyholder funds on deposit li-
abilities are valued using discounted cash flow techniques based upon interest rates currently being offered by the Company 
for similar contracts with maturities consistent with the contracts being valued.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with no de-
fined maturities are valued using discounted cash flow techniques based upon a risk free interest rate, adjusted for Company 
specific non-performance risk and a non-stochastic process margin or the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.  
Other assets and liabilities considered financial instruments such as premium and accounts receivable, accrued investment 
income and cash are generally of a short-term nature and their carrying values are deemed to approximate fair value.

(in millions)
December 31, 

2008
December 31, 

2007

Financial Instrument Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Fixed maturities  $          459.5  $          459.5  $          501.0  $          501.0 

Equity securities 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.6

Short-term investments 55.5 55.5 64.1 64.1

Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 17.9 17.9 19.7 19.7

Mortgage loans held for investment 20.0 20.9 17.1 17.9

Policyholder funds on deposit 4.8 4.8 8.3 8.3
Deposit-type annuity contracts 97.1 91.4 104.7 96.4
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